
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

JJuunnee  33,,  22002244  



 
May 31, 2024  2:47:56 PM 
 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
JUNE 3, 2024 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM, 116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 
LIVESTREAMED ON FACEBOOK 

 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Keyes 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
   Approval of Meeting Agenda 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes of May 6 & May 20, 2024 
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents  
c) RESO 2024-021 Approving & Accepting Sale of Real Property, 521 Monroe St. 
d) JCPC Certification Standards & Washington County JCPC Membership 
e) Facility Use Policy 2024 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:20 PM Employee of the Quarter, Chair Keyes 
 
Item 4  6:30 PM Departmental Update:  Senior Center, Ms. Renee’ Collier 
 
Item 5 6:50 PM Board of Equalization & Review, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 6 7:00 PM Quasi-Judicial Hearing:  Special Use Permit, T.F. Nixon Memorial Gardens, Mr. 

Curtis Potter, CM/CA & Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning/Safety Director 
 
Item 7 7:30 PM FY25 Budget Ordinance, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
 
Item 8 7:45 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy 

Dixon, Finance Officer 
 

Item 9 7:55 PM  Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, or Staff 
a) ABC Board Budget Amendment FY23-24 
b) ABC Board Proposed Budget FY24-25 

 
Item 10  8:00 PM  Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  

(attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
Recess/Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  June 3, 2024 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Approval of Minutes of May 6 & May 20, 2024 
 See attached at the end of the package. 
 

b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents  
 See attached. 
 

c) RESO 2024-021 Approving & Accepting Sale of Real Property, 521 Monroe St. 
 See attached. 
 

d) JCPC Certification Standards & Washington County JCPC Membership 
 See attached. 
 

e) Facility Use Policy 2024 
 See attached. 
 
 

 









P
a
y
e
e
 
N
a
m
e

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
r
y
 

O
w
n
e
r

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
1

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
2

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
3

R
e
f
u
n
d
 
T
y
p
e

P
l
a
t
e
 

N
u
m
b
e
r

S
t
a
t
u
s

R
e
f
u
n
d
 

R
e
a
s
o
n

C
r
e
a
t
e
 

D
a
t
e

T
a
x
 

J
u
r
i
s
d
i
c
t
i
o
n

L
e
v
y
 
T
y
p
e

C
h
a
n
g
e

T
o
t
a
l
 
C
h
a
n
g
e

W
T
A
X

(
$
1
2
.
0
9
)

(
$
1
2
.
7
8
)

P
T
A
X

(
$
8
2
.
7
6
)

(
$
8
7
.
5
2
)

P
V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
E
E

(
$
1
5
.
0
0
)

(
$
1
5
.
0
0
)

$
1
1
5
.
3
0

W
T
A
X

(
$
3
7
.
8
7
)

(
$
3
7
.
8
7
)

$
3
7
.
8
7

W
T
A
X

(
$
7
9
.
7
3
)

(
$
7
9
.
7
3
)

P
T
A
X

(
$
5
0
.
6
5
)

(
$
5
0
.
6
5
)

P
V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
E
E

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

$
1
3
0
.
3
8

W
T
A
X

(
$
1
1
0
.
1
3
)

(
$
1
1
0
.
1
3
)

P
T
A
X

(
$
6
9
.
9
6
)

(
$
6
9
.
9
6
)

P
V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
E
E

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

$
1
8
0
.
0
9

W
T
A
X

(
$
9
.
4
9
)

(
$
9
.
4
9
)

$
9
.
4
9

W
T
A
X

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

P
T
A
X

(
$
3
5
.
2
6
)

(
$
3
5
.
2
6
)

P
V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
E
E

(
$
1
5
.
0
0
)

(
$
1
5
.
0
0
)

$
5
0
.
2
6

W
T
A
X

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

P
T
A
X

(
$
1
4
8
.
1
2
)

(
$
1
4
8
.
1
2
)

P
V
E
H
I
C
L
E
 
F
E
E

(
$
1
5
.
0
0
)

(
$
1
5
.
0
0
)

$
1
6
3
.
1
2

W
T
A
X

(
$
4
2
2
.
0
5
)

(
$
4
2
2
.
0
5
)

$
4
2
2
.
0
5

W
T
A
X

(
$
1
4
.
9
6
)

(
$
1
4
.
9
6
)

$
1
4
.
9
6

5
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4

$
0
.
0
0

R
e
f
u
n
d

$
0
.
0
0

R
e
f
u
n
d

P
E
N
D
I
N
G

Refun T
a
g
 

S
u
r
r
e
n
d
e
r

Refun T
a
g
 

S
u
r
r
e
n
d
e
r

5
/
1
/
2
0
2
4

P
L
Y
M
O
U
T
H
,
 
N
C
 

2
7
9
6
2

P
r
o
r
a
t
i
o
n

S
W
A
I
N
,
 
E
A
G
L
E
 

H
A
R
D
I
S
O
N

S
W
A
I
N
,
 
E
A
G
L
E
 

H
A
R
D
I
S
O
N

1
0
0
5
 
F
O
L
L
Y
 
R
D

L
O
T
 
2

P
L
Y
M
O
U
T
H
,
 
N
C
 

2
7
9
6
2

P
r
o
r
a
t
i
o
n

F
J
E
3
1
9
4

T
K
N
6
2
8
1

P
E
N
D
I
N
G

S
E
A
B
O
A
R
D
 

T
I
M
B
E
R
 
I
N
C

S
E
A
B
O
A
R
D
 

T
I
M
B
E
R
 
I
N
C

1
4
5
8
 

M
O
R
R
A
T
T
O
C
K
 
R
D

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

R
e
f
u
n
d

Refund
 
G S
i
t
u
s
 

e
r
r
o
r

5
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4

P
L
Y
M
O
U
T
H
,
 
N
C
 

2
7
9
6
2

A
d
j
u
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
>
=
 

$
1
0
0

B
J
Z
4
4
3
4

P
E
N
D
I
N
G

R
O
G
E
R
S
O
N
,
 

L
A
U
R
E
N
 
A
S
H
L
E
Y

R
O
G
E
R
S
O
N
,
 

L
A
U
R
E
N
 
A
S
H
L
E
Y

2
6
3
 
O
L
D
 
R
O
P
E
R
 

R
O
A
D
 
L
O
O
P

5
/
9
/
2
0
2
4

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

R
e
f
u
n
d

$
0
.
0
0

R
e
f
u
n
d

P
A
T
R
I
C
K
,
 
T
A
R
A
 

M
I
C
H
E
L
L
E

P
A
T
R
I
C
K
,
 
T
A
R
A
 

M
I
C
H
E
L
L
E

1
2
1
0
 

B
A
C
K
W
O
O
D
S
 
R
D

R
O
P
E
R
,
 
N
C
 

2
7
9
7
0

A
d
j
u
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
<
 

$
1
0
0

P
A
N
7
8
0
8

P
E
N
D
I
N
G

Refund
 
G S
i
t
u
s
 

e
r
r
o
r

Refu T
a
g
 

S
u
r
r
e
n
d
e
r

5
/
7
/
2
0
2
4

P
L
Y
M
O
U
T
H
,
 
N
C
 

2
7
9
6
2

P
r
o
r
a
t
i
o
n

R
J
M
2
7
0
4

P
E
N
D
I
N
G

L
Y
N
N
,
 
J
A
M
E
S
 

J
O
N
A
T
H
A
N

L
Y
N
N
,
 
J
A
M
E
S
 

J
O
N
A
T
H
A
N

2
3
9
 
L
Y
N
N
 
L
N

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

R
e
f
u
n
d

Refund
 
G T
a
g
 

S
u
r
r
e
n
d
e
r

5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4

S
A
L
E
M
,
 
S
C
 

2
9
6
7
6

P
r
o
r
a
t
i
o
n

R
E
N
6
0
1
1

P
E
N
D
I
N
G

H
A
R
T
,
 

R
A
N
D
O
L
P
H
 

W
I
L
S
O
N

H
A
R
T
,
 

R
A
N
D
O
L
P
H
 

W
I
L
S
O
N

6
2
7
 
N
.
 
L
A
K
E
 

D
R
.

5
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

$
0
.
0
0

R
e
f
u
n
d

$
0
.
0
0

R
e
f
u
n
d

H
A
R
T
,
 
P
A
I
G
E
 

W
I
X
O
N

H
A
R
T
,
 
P
A
I
G
E
 

W
I
X
O
N

6
2
7
 
N
.
 
L
A
K
E
 

D
R
.

S
A
L
E
M
,
 
S
C
 

2
9
6
7
6

P
r
o
r
a
t
i
o
n

K
D
V
9
2
0
8

P
E
N
D
I
N
G

Refund
 
G T
a
g
 

S
u
r
r
e
n
d
e
r

Refu T
a
g
 

S
u
r
r
e
n
d
e
r

5
/
7
/
2
0
2
4

R
O
P
E
R
,
 
N
C
 

2
7
9
7
0

P
r
o
r
a
t
i
o
n

H
D
8
8
9
3
F

P
E
N
D
I
N
G

B
R
O
Y
L
E
S
,
 

J
A
M
E
S
 
E
D
W
A
R
D

B
R
O
Y
L
E
S
,
 

J
A
M
E
S
 
E
D
W
A
R
D

B
R
O
Y
L
E
S
,
 

P
H
Y
L
L
I
S
 

S
I
M
P
S
O
N

2
9
3
 
W
I
L
L
I
A
M
S
 

L
O
O
P
 
R
D

(
$
0
.
6
9
)

(
$
4
.
7
6
)

$
0
.
0
0

R
e
f
u
n
d

Refund
 
G S
i
t
u
s
 

e
r
r
o
r

5
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4

G
R
E
E
N
V
I
L
L
E
,
 

N
C
 
2
7
8
3
4

A
d
j
u
s
t
m
e
n
t
 
>
=
 

$
1
0
0

H
M
Y
6
9
4
2

P
E
N
D
I
N
G

B
A
X
T
E
R
,
 

T
R
E
'
S
H
U
N
 

T
Y
R
E
K

B
A
X
T
E
R
,
 

T
R
E
'
S
H
U
N
 

T
Y
R
E
K

2
9
2
4
 
S
U
S
S
E
X
 

S
T

A
P
T
 
9

P
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
O
w
n
e
r

Re
I
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 

C
h
a
n
g
e

N
o
rth

 C
a
ro

lin
a
 V

e
h
ic

le
 T

a
x
 S

y
s
te

m

N
C

V
T

S
 P

e
n

d
in

g
 R

e
fu

n
d

 re
p

o
rt

M
a

y
 2

0
2

4

 P
a

g
e

  1
 o

f  2



P
a
y
e
e
 
N
a
m
e

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
r
y
 

O
w
n
e
r

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
1

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
2

A
d
d
r
e
s
s
 
3

R
e
f
u
n
d
 
T
y
p
e

P
l
a
t
e
 

N
u
m
b
e
r

S
t
a
t
u
s

R
e
f
u
n
d
 

R
e
a
s
o
n

C
r
e
a
t
e
 

D
a
t
e

T
a
x
 

J
u
r
i
s
d
i
c
t
i
o
n

L
e
v
y
 
T
y
p
e

C
h
a
n
g
e

T
o
t
a
l
 
C
h
a
n
g
e

P
r
i
m
a
r
y
 
O
w
n
e
r

Re
I
n
t
e
r
e
s
t
 

C
h
a
n
g
e

N
o
rth

 C
a
ro

lin
a
 V

e
h
ic

le
 T

a
x
 S

y
s
te

m

N
C

V
T

S
 P

e
n

d
in

g
 R

e
fu

n
d

 re
p

o
rt

M
a

y
 2

0
2

4

$
1
1
2
3
.
5
2

S
h

erri W
ilkin

s
5/29/2024

"A
p
p
ro

v
ed

 b
y
 th

e W
ash

in
g
to

n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 B
o

ard
 o

f

R
eq

u
ested

 b
y
 T

ax
 A

d
m

in
istrato

r
D
ate

C
o

m
m

issio
n
ers m

eetin
g
 h

eld
 _

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
, 2

0
2

4
"

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

    C
lerk

 to
 th

e B
o

ard
 o

f C
o

m
m

issio
n
ers

R
e
f
u
n
d
 
T
o
t
a
l

 P
a

g
e

  1
 o

f  2







JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

G.S. 143B-853 allows for a 2-year funding cycle for programs that meet the requirements of the statute and have been 
awarded funds in a prior funding cycle. Indicate below if the JCPC plans to allow for a 1-year or 2-year funding cycle.

1-Year Funding: FY 2024-2025

Membership
A. Have the members of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council been appointed by county commissioners? Yes
B. Are members appointed for two-year terms and are those terms staggered? Yes
C. Is membership reflective of social-economic and racial diversity of the community? Yes
D. Does the membership of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council reflect the required positions as provided by    

N.C.G.S. §143B-846? Yes
If not, which positions are vacant and why?

The position of a Business Community member has been open, and a person is interested to fill that position. Also, 2 
persons under the age of 21 or 1 person under age 21 and 1 person from the public representing the interests of families 
of at-risk juveniles are currently open on the Board.  Those position are trying to be filled as well. The Juvenile Defense 
Attorney position has not been able to be filled in several years.

Organization
A. Does the JCPC have written Bylaws? Yes
B. Bylaws are On file
C. Bylaws contain Conflict of Interest section per JCPC policy and procedure. Yes
D. Does the JCPC have written policies and procedures for funding and review? Yes
E. These policies and procedures On file
F. Does the JCPC have officers and are they elected annually? Yes

Meetings
A. JCPC meetings are considered open and public notice of meetings is provided. Yes
B. Is a quorum defined as the majority of membership and required to be present in order to conduct business at 

JCPC meetings? Yes
C. Does the JCPC meet six (6) times a year at a minimum? Yes
D. Are minutes taken at all official meetings? Yes
E. Are minutes distributed prior to or during subsequent meetings? Yes

Planning
A. Does the JCPC conduct a biennial planning process which includes a needs assessment, monitoring of 

programs and funding allocation process? Yes
B. Is this Biennial Plan presented to the Board of County Commissioners and to DPS? Yes
C. Is the Funding Plan approved by the full council and submitted to Commissioners for their approval? Yes

Public Awareness
A. Does the JCPC communicate the availability of funds to all public and private non-profit agencies which serve 

children or their families and to other interested community members? Yes
RFP, Distribution List, and Advertisement attached

B. Does the JCPC complete a biennial needs assessment and make that information available to agencies which 
serve children or their families, and to interested community members? Yes

No Overdue Tax Debt



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

A. As recipient of the county DPS JCPC allocation, does the County certify that it has no overdue tax debts, as 
defined by N.C.G.S. §105-243.1, at the Federal, State, or local level? Yes

Briefly outline the plan for correcting any areas of standards non-compliance.
Working on filling vacant positions on JCPC membership.



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

Instructions: N.C.G.S. § 143B-846 specifies suggested members be appointed by county commissioners to serve on local 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Councils.  In certain categories, a designee may be appointed to serve.  Please indicate the 
person appointed to serve in each category and his/her title.  Indicate appointed members who are designees for named 
positions.  Indicate race and gender for all appointments.

Specified Members Name Title Designee Race Gender

1) School Superintendent or designee Will White Superintendent White Male

2) Chief of Police or designee Willie Williams Chief of Police Black or African-
American

Male

3) Local Sheriff or designee Johnny Barnes Sheriff White Male

4) District Attorney or designee Seth Edwards District Attorney White Male

5) Chief Court Counselor or designee Stacy Huss Chief Court Counselor White Female

6) Director, Local Management Entity/
Managed Care Organization (LME/MCO), or 
designee

    

7) Director DSS or designee Clifton Hardison Director White Male

8) County Manager or designee Curtis Potter County Manager White Male

9) Substance Abuse Professional     

10) Member of Faith Community Harry White Minister Black or African-
American

Male

11) County Commissioner Julius Walker Commissioner Black or African-
American

Male

12) A Person Under the Age of 21 Ni'chelle Caldwell Student Black or African-
American

Female

13) A Person Under the Age of 21, or a member 
of the public representing the interests of 
families of at-risk juveniles

    

14) Juvenile Defense Attorney     

15) Chief District Judge or designee Regina Parker Chief District Court 
Judge

Black or African-
American

Female

16) Member of Business Community Diane White Local Business 
Representative

Black or African-
American

Female

17) Local Health Director or designee     

18) Rep. United Way/other non-profit Kay Overton Director-Partnership 
for Children

White Female

19) Representative/Parks and Rec Randy Fulford Parks and Recreation Black or African-
American

Male

20) County Commissioner appointee Dina Brown School Counselor Black or African-
American

Female

21) County Commissioner appointee Doretha Garrett Center for Family 
Violence

Black or African-
American

Female

22) County Commissioner appointee Lucas Denny Supervisor Juvenile 
Justice

Black or African-
American

Male

23) County Commissioner appointee Missy Dixon Fianance Director 
Washington County

White Female



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Agreement
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

Specified Members Name Title Designee Race Gender

24) County Commissioner appointee Stephanie Simpson Police Department Black or African-
American

Female

25) County Commissioner appointee Tina Singleton Juvenile Court 
Counselor

White Female

26) County Commissioner appointee     



cmo.admin.forms.ngfua.application v2024.1   1 
 

 
Non-Governmental Facility Use Policy 

 
Washington County attempts to provide a valuable service to the community by occasionally permitting 
private non-governmental use of certain County owned facilities for civic, cultural, educational, or other 
approved activities when able to do so without disrupting or interfering with official County operations.   
 
This policy is intended to establish the minimum terms, conditions, and procedures under which such use may 
be authorized.  Requests to use any County owned facility or property must be made at least ten (10) days in 
advance by contacting the County Manager’s Office located at 116 Adams St. Plymouth, NC 27962 by phone 
(252)793-5823 or email at: cmoassistant@washconc.org  

 
GENERAL RULES 

All uses of any County owned or controlled facility by any authorized users (including individuals, groups, 
agencies, or organizations as well as any and all of their respective employees, volunteers, agents, invitees, or 
other guests of any kind) shall be governed at all times by the following general rules: 

1. Users shall designate one primary person to be held responsible for the activity. 
2. The same designated primary person shall also be the ONLY point of contact for the County. 
3. Users must request use of the facility at least thirty (30) calendar days, and not more than ninety (90) 

calendar days before the proposed use date, by submitting a Facility Use Application to the County 
Manager’s Office.  Applications may be denied or conditionally approved for any reason, or for no 
reason, in the sole discretion of the County Manager or their authorized agent.  Such reasons may 
include without limitation: concerns about property condition, activity specific liability concerns, public 
health and safety concerns, or potential interference with County operations or activities. 

4. Users shall only permit the facility to be used for the purpose(s) stated in the signed Application. 
5. Users shall not assign or transfer any permitted authorization to use County facilities to any other party 

without County’s written permission. 
6. Facility reservations shall be made in the order requested.  The County reserves the right to assign 

available facilities based on its determination of appropriateness for the intended use and convenience 
to minimize potential disruption to normal County operations.  The County may change the assigned 
room or facility or cancel a reservation if an emergency or urgent need arises although every effort will 
be made to reasonably accommodate the User in any such an event.  The County is not responsible for 
any financial losses incurred by Users in the event of any cancellation or amendment of the permitted 
use, or by changing the facility assigned to the user. 

7. Entry instructions will be coordinated ONLY with the same designated primary person.  
8. No special or reserved parking is provided.  All parking is on a first-come, first-served basis.  
9. Users are expected to furnish their own supplies (copiers, markers, pens, pencils, paper, flip charts, 

post-it notes, tape, etc.) Copier services are not provided. 
10. No person shall intentionally throw or place litter on the grounds, streets, or parking areas. 
11. Users are expected to clean up thoroughly after all events, and to place all food and trash in designated 

containers if provided, and to empty such containers or otherwise deposit all such food and trash in 
designated dumpsters located outside of the facility. 

12. Users shall NOT restrict attendance or participation in any event at the facility based on race, sex, 
color, religious affiliation, national origin, disability, political affiliation, or any other protected class. 

mailto:cmoassistant@washconc.org


cmo.admin.forms.ngfua.application v2024.1   2 
 

Audio/Visual and Sound Equipment:  Unless otherwise requested and approved in advance, Users are 
expected to provide their own visual and audio equipment.  Access to County owned audio/vision equipment 
is generally NOT provided or authorized.  Open unprotected Wi-Fi may be available in some locations but is 
not guaranteed or endorsed as secure. 
 
Facility Set-up:  Users are responsible for set-up (tables/chairs arrangements) and break-down for each event 
and must return all furniture to its original location.  The County is NOT responsible for furniture arrangement. 
 
Food Services:  The County Manager’s Office must be notified if food is going to be served.  
 
Responsibility for Supervision & Damage: 
The designated primary person (and point of contact) must be physically present at all times during all 
permitted use of the facility, and together with the User, shall be primarily responsible for supervising the 
general care, custody and control of the facility and any and all activities and events thereat, including the 
maintenance of general order and safety of all people present.  No County officials or employees shall be 
deemed or held responsible for any such supervision.  Users shall be responsible for any damage to County 
property, other than normal wear and tear, while the facility is under the User’s supervision, care, custody, 
and control. The following rules shall be observed: 

1. Users shall NOT place tape on painted surfaces, or paint, wallpaper, mark, or deface; or drive nails, 
tacks, or screws into floors, walls, ceilings, desks, or any other County property. 

2. Users shall immediately remove their property and equipment from the facility after its use. 
3. Users shall leave the County premises arranged as found and in a clean, neat and orderly manner. 
4. Users shall comply with all applicable local fire codes and all local, state, and federal laws. 
5. Users shall place all trash in the appropriate containers.  
6. Users agree to be responsible to the County for any damage to County property, and shall further 

agree to hold the County harmless and indemnified from any claims, suits, or causes of action arising 
from the User’s use of any County owned facility or property. 

 
Prohibited Activities: The following activities are prohibited within County facilities and on County property: 

1. Commercial use of County facilities or property is not permitted. Users shall NOT sell or permit any 
vendors to sell any products, goods, or services at any facility. 

2. Possession, use, or sale of alcohol or illegal drugs or other illegal substances or items.  
3. Smoking, Vaping, or Gambling. 
4. Use of any open flames (including candles and burners of any kind) or pyrotechnics of any kind. 
5. Any activity violating any local, state, or federal rules, regulations, or laws. 
6. Any activity that disrupts or is likely to disrupt County operations or activities or damage property. 
7. The attachment, placement or display of any exterior signs related to any activity on any County 

property must be clearly described in the Application and pre-approved in writing by the County. 
 
Fees/Cancellation/Refunds:  Users shall pay any applicable security deposit or facility use fees that may be 
established from time to time by the Board of Commissioners in the County Fee Schedule at the time of 
submitting a Facility Use Application if requested by the County, or otherwise at least ten (10) working days 
before the requested use date to avoid cancellation without refund.  For good cause shown, Users may cancel 
with a refund or request modification of a facility use request with a refund if such modification cannot be 
provided, up to forty eight (48) hours prior to the date and time of the intended use of the facility by providing 
written notice thereof to the County.   



cmo.admin.forms.ngfua.application v2024.1   3 
 

Non-Governmental Facility Use Application 
 
Full Legal Name of Organization: _______________________________________________________________ 
 
Event Date: ______________________________    Event Time: ________________________________ 
 
Full Legal Name of Point of Contact: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
Email: _______________________________________ Cell Number: _____________________________ 
 
Desired Facility/Location: (1st Choice): _______________________     (2nd Choice): _______________________ 
 
Purpose of Event & Description of Intended Activities (be as descriptive as possible): _____________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Will food be served?  Yes______   No______ 
 
The following items must be initialed before application is considered for approval: 
 
_______ I have fully read and completely understand the Non-Government Facility Use Policy to which this 
form is attached, and I further understand that under such policy, I am personally responsible and accountable 
to Washington County for insuring that the requested use of the facility stays in full compliance with the rules, 
terms, and conditions stated within such policy, as well as any supplemental terms or conditions that may be 
added by the County during its review and approval of this request. (Any supplemental terms or conditions 
will be identified at the bottom of this Application before signature by the County Representative). 
 
_______ I understand that as the Point of Contact, am not to transfer entrance information to any facility to 
anyone else and I am responsible for unlocking and locking the facility back, for being physically present at the 
facility at all times during its use, and for making sure all trash and personal items are removed. 
 
Signature of Point of Contact: ____________________________________________   Date:_______________ 
 
Submit form to the County Manager’s Office: 116 Adams St. Plymouth, NC 27962 cmoassistant@washconc.org  
This Box for Internal County Use Only:     Application Received On: _______________ 
Facility Location Approved & Description of Any Additional Terms/Conditions: __________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Application ☐ Approved or ☐ Denied on _________________ by: ______________________________(Sign) 
 
Point of Contact Notified on ___________________ by: _______________________________________(Sign) 

mailto:cmoassistant@washconc.org


 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     June 3, 2024  
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     June 3, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Employee of the Quarter, Chair Keyes 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Chair Keyes will make a presentation to the Employee of the Quarter. The Employee of 
the Quarter will receive a Certificate and a check for $50 and be recognized on the 
Employee Recognition Board in the County’s Administrative Building. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     June 3, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Departmental Update:  Senior Center, Ms. Renee Collier, Senior Center 

Director 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
Each month a different Department Head will give an update on their Department.  This 
month you will hear from Ms. Renee’ Collier on the Senior Center. 
 
(Note:  As Commissioners, you may request that we invite a certain Department Head to 
give an update. Please let the Clerk know if you have such a request.) 
 
 
 
 



WASHINGTON COUNTY

SENIOR CENTER

Board Of Commissioner Update
JUNE 2024



Washington County

SENIOR CENTER
For Washington County residents 50 or older

Exercise Programs both morning and evening

FREE Exercise Room

Educational Programs

Craft Classes

Daily Programmed Activity- advertised through Calendar

Meals Program for Congregate and Home-Delivered (MOW)

Special Events and Outings

Connect with needed Services

Free Transportation to Center via Riverlight Transit



YEAR IN REVIEW
 July 2023- May 2024

Regular Re-occurring Programming, Exercise Classes & Craft Classes by Staff

14 - Large Events or Programs
2 - Education Programs of Younger Generations
20 - Education or Enrichment From Outside Groups
5 - Volunteer-Led Programs that occurs monthly
24 - Day Trips & Monthly Library Visits 
1 - Overnight Trip to Concord and Zoo
4 - Center Sponsored Donation Fundraisers
35+ - Meals on Wheels/Facility Bound Seniors Christmas Gifts

But also:



June 7- Elder Abuse Walk 
June 11- Movies with other Center 
June 13- Aquarium Trip
June 21- Pontoon Cruise
July 9 - WITN-7 Tour
July 26- Downtown Trip
September 25-26: New Bern Trip 
November 12-14: Myrtle Beach Trip

CURRENTLY AT THE CENTER
June 2024 Planned Trips and Events



FUTURE FOR OLDER ADULTS IN NC
POTENTIAL UPCOMING ISSUES:

Healthcare for Older Adults
Access to Services
Need for In-Home Help
Rising Costs

Family Services - Caregivers
Education alongside Community
Need Resources

Broadband
Access
Education

Transportation

POTENTIAL OPPORTUNITIES:
Increase in Older Adults to the Area
2031, there will be more people aged 65 and older than children under 18 in the
state.

Hopeful Increase in funding for Older Adults
Executive Order No. 280 - Building Age-Friendly State
Response: All Ages, All Stages Campaign



FUTURE FOR THE SENIOR CENTER
OUTREACH

Caregiver Support Liaison
Center without Walls

Roper & Creswell Programs
Regular Marketing Campaigns

Social Media/ Newspapers/ Radio
Attend and Host Community Events

NEW PROGRAMS:
Exercise

Town Classes
Cardio Drumming

Digital Champion Grant
Waiting on Response

CENTER CHANGES:
Change in Older Adults Needs/Desires
Increase in Variety Programming
Update Center Appearance
Staff Work Schedule
Consistent Virtual Programming



LOCATION: 198 Hwy 45 North - Plymouth
(co-located with Health Dept-behind K-12 School)

FACEBOOK: 
Washington County Senior Center

WEBPAGE:
www.washconc.org > Departments > Senior Center

PHONE:
(252)793-3816



WASHINGTON COUNTY SENIOR CENTER

Questions?

Elizabeth “Renee” Collier
Board Of Commissioner Update

JUNE 2024



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     June 3, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Board of Equalization & Review, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Motion to re-convene as the Board of Equalization and Review (E & R) 
 
b) Hearing of Appeals 

As of the preparation of this agenda package, Sherri Wilkins, Tax 
Administrator, has informed the County Manager’s Office that there are no 
appeals at this time. 

 
c) Motion to adjourn the Board of E & R. 



WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA STATEMENT 

ITEM NO: 6

DATE:   June 3, 2024 

ITEM: Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing: Special Use Permit for T.F. Nixon
Memorial Gardens, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA & Mr. Allen Pittman, 
Planning Director 

SUMMARY EXPLANATION:  

Ms. Bennett will swear the Board of Commissioners in as the Board of Adjustment. 

The Board of Adjustment will then convene. 

Mr. Potter will preside over the quasi-judicial hearing for the abovementioned subject. 

See attached. 

jbennett
Cross-Out
6

jbennett
Inserted Text




Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures – SUPv2 Page 1 of 7 

Procedures for Quasi-Judicial Hearing for 

Special Use Permit (“SUP”): 

I. MOTION to go into Public Hearing to hold a quasi-judicial hearing on the following case:

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION filed by  Mary Smith on 3/26/24  seeking a Special 
Use Permit pursuant to Article 3A, Subsection C(J) of the Washington County Zoning 
Ordinance to: build a proposed 6 grave cemetery on property owned by Shelia 
Littlejohn located off 1079 Woodlawn Road Roper, NC 27970 (PIN: 6898.00-78-4167). 

II. INSTRUCTION RE QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEDURE (Attorney/Planning Director)
1. Special Use Permits are governed by NCGS 160D and Article 5 of the Washington County

Zoning Ordinance.  NCGS 160D-406 and 160D-705 require the use of quasi-judicial
procedures during public hearings held to consider such matters.

2. Quasi-judicial proceedings are different than other public hearings in that not everyone
has the right to present evidence before this Board and to become a party to this
proceeding.   A Quasi-judicial proceeding is much like a court proceeding where an
individual’s rights and interests are being decided under specific rules of procedure.
Parties to this case have the right to present evidence and cross examine witnesses. The
burden of proof in these cases typically lies with the Applicant.   The extent to which the
Rules of Evidence used in courts apply is up to the discretion of the Board.

3. Only those who can demonstrate that they will be affected by the outcome of the
hearing may become parties. After a description of the person’s interest in this case, the
Board will determine whether they will be allowed to present evidence as a party.
Please note, you do not have to be a party to testify if someone who is a party calls you
as a witness.  All parties and witnesses who intend to present evidence or testify before
this Board must be sworn in.

4. As a quasi-judicial hearing, by law it must adhere to certain procedures, as there are
legal standards that must be followed.  To that end please consider the following:

A. The Board must base its decisions only on the evidence presented, including
testimony given under oath or affirmation by any parties or witnesses called by a
party.

B. Please limit testimony to facts relevant to the application and applicable legal
standards for the Board’s decision, what you know personally; no opinion
testimony or hearsay.

C. Parties may cross-examine each testifying party or witness after their testimony if
there are any questions.  Cross-examination shall be limited to the matters
testified about during the original testimony.

D. If you want the Board to see written evidence such as reports and maps or
exhibits, the witness who is familiar with the evidence should ask that it be
introduced during or at the end of his/her testimony.



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures – SUPv2  Page 2 of 7 

E. In order for the testimony to be considered as evidence used in making the 
decision, it can only be given by persons in attendance at the meeting; otherwise, 
it is considered hearsay. 

 
III. BOARD CONFLICTS OF INTEREST: (Board Chair or designated Speaker)   

It is also important that the members of the Board of Adjustment consider and make 
sure that they do not have any conflicts of interest with serving as a member of the 
decision-making body for purposes of hearing and ruling on this particular case.  
Therefore, the following questions should be considered by each member and any 
potential conflicts should be voiced, discussed, and resolved if possible or otherwise 
result in recusal of any member with such a conflict by the other members of the Board. 
 

1. does any member of this body have any interest in the property or the application, or 
do they own property in close proximity to the subject property;  

2. does any member of this body stand to gain or lose any financial benefit as a result of 
the outcome of this hearing;  

3. does any member of this body feel they cannot hear and consider the application in a 
fair and objective manner;  

4. has any member of this body engaged in any ex parte communications with either 
proponents or opponents of the application, and, if so, I ask you to place on the record 
the substance of any such communications so that interested parties have the 
opportunity at this hearing to rebut the communications. 

5. Are there any members of the audience who wish to challenge on appearance of 
fairness grounds participation in the matter by any member of Council, including the 
reasons for the request? 

 
IV. INSTRUCTION RE SPECIFIC REVIEW STANDARDS: (Attorney/Planning director) 

Article 5 of the Washington County Zoning Ordinance is available online in its entirety 
for reference.  Certain relevant excerpts are pasted below for reference/convenience: 

1. Purpose and Intent:  Special use permits add flexibility to the Zoning Ordinance by 
allowing uses which would otherwise be undesirable to be established in designated 
districts under conditions imposed by the Board of Commissioners. Such permits are 
authorized under the terms of this article to provide for certain uses which cannot be 
well adjusted to their environment in particular locations in Washington County with full 
protection offered to surrounding properties by only the application of the underlying 
zoning district regulations. Further, special permit uses are those uses which, if not 
specially regulated, can have an undue impact on or be incompatible with other uses of 
land within or adjacent to a given zoning district. Based on the recommendation of the 
Planning Board, and upon the granting of a special use permit by the Board of 
Commissioners, these uses may be allowed to be located or expanded within given 
designated zoning districts under the standards, controls, limitations, performance 
criteria, restrictions and other regulations of this article.  



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures – SUPv2  Page 3 of 7 

2. General Standards and Criteria for Special Use Permit Review: All applications for 
special use permit shall be reviewed using the following criteria:  

 
1. The proposed use shall be: 

 
A 

In harmony with the adopted Land Use Plan and the Growth 
Opportunities Plan;  

 

B In harmony with the intent and purpose of the zoning district in 
which the use is proposed to be located;  

 

C In harmony with the character of adjacent properties and the 
surrounding neighborhoods and also with existing and proposed 
development.  

 

 

2 The proposed use shall be adequately served by essential public services such as 
streets, drainage facilities, fire protection and public water, and sewer facilities, 
where applicable.  

 

3 The proposed use shall not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any 
feature determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic importance.  

 

4 The proposed use shall be designed, sited and landscaped so that the use will 
not hinder or discourage the appropriate development or use of adjacent 
properties and surrounding neighborhoods.  

 

5 The proposed use does not affect adversely the general plans for the physical 
development of the County as embodied in these regulations and in any plan or 
portion thereof adopted by the Planning Board. 

 

6 The proposed use will not affect adversely the health and safety of residents and 
workers in the County. 

 

7 The proposed use will not be adversely affected by the existing uses.   
8 The proposed use will be placed on a lot of sufficient size to satisfy the space 

requirements of said use.  
 

9 The proposed use will not constitute a nuisance or hazard because of the 
number of persons who will attend or use said facility, vehicular movement, 
noise or fume generation or any type of physical activity. 

 

10 The standards set forth for each particular use for which a permit may be 
granted have been met.  

 

11 The Planning Board or Board of Commissioners may impose or require such 
additional restrictions and conditions as may be necessary to protect the health 
and safety of workers and residents in the community and to protect the value 
and use of property in the general neighborhood.  

 

12 The proposed use will not be contrary to the purposes stated for these 
regulations.  

 

13 Whenever the Board of Commissioners shall find in the case of any permit 
granted pursuant to the provisions of the regulations that any of the terms, 
conditions or restrictions upon which such permit was granted are not being 
complied with, said Board shall rescind and revoke such permit after giving due 
notice to all parties concerned and granting full opportunity for a public hearing. 

 



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures – SUPv2  Page 4 of 7 

 
3. Special Conditions:  In granting any special use permit, the Board of Commissioners may 

impose any reasonable standards or conditions deemed necessary to protect the public 
interest and welfare. These may include but need not be limited to: 

a. More restrictive sign standards. 
b. Additional open space, landscaping or screening requirements. 
c. Additional yard requirements. 
d. Special lighting requirements. 
e. Time limitations on hours of operation. 
f. Additional off-street parking and loading requirements. 
g. Additional utility, drainage, and public facility requirements. 
h. Additional right-of-way and public access requirements. 
i. Additional requirements to ensure compatibility with the Land Use Plan. 
j. Conditions for renewal, extension, expiration, and/or revocation of the permit. 

 

4. Action by Planning Board:  No special use permit shall be approved unless the proposal 
has been reviewed by the Planning Board. The Planning Board shall conduct at least one 
(1) public hearing in accordance with this Ordinance. Following the public hearing, the 
Planning Board shall prepare and by motion adopt its recommendations, which may 
include changes in the applicant’s original proposal resulting from the hearing, and shall 
report such recommendations, together with any explanatory material, to the County 
Commissioners. 
 

5. Action by Board of Commissioners:  Before approving a special use permit, the Board of 
Commissioners (acting as the Board of Adjustment) shall hold at least one (1) public 
hearing in accordance with this Ordinance after which the Board of Commissioners may 
make appropriate changes to or impose appropriate conditions upon the proposed 
special use. Nothing herein shall preclude the Board of Commissioners from holding a 
joint public hearing with the Planning Board.   

 

6. Other MISC Procedural Matters: 
a. Any public hearing conducted on this matter may be continued to a later specific 

date, time, and location as deemed necessary by the Board.   
 

b. If deemed reasonably necessary by the Board, one or more physical site visits may 
be arranged in accordance with applicable laws and reasonable safeguards to insure 
no conflicts of interest or unfair advantages are created as a result thereof for any 
Board member, applicant or any other interested party. 
 

c. A concurring vote of a majority of the members of Board of Commissioners shall 
be required to approve a special use permit. 
 

d. Unless otherwise directed, staff will prepare a written order within five (5) business 
days reflecting the relevant findings of fact and conclusions of law supporting and 
final decision of the Board in this hearing.  The Clerk shall circulate a draft for 
signature approval by a majority of the Board members voting in this matter to grant 
or deny the permit.  After receiving enough signatures, the Order shall be certified 
and entered in the Board’s records as its “Final Order” in this matter.  The Clerk shall 
provide notices thereof as required by applicable law. 

 



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures – SUPv2  Page 5 of 7 

 
V. PARTY IDENTIFICATION/WITNESSES/OATH: (Board Clerk) 

At this time we will identify and swear in or affirm all of the parties and witnesses. 
A. Call for and ID Parties- name, address, for/against applicant 

 
 
 

B. Call for and ID Witnesses- name, address, for/against applicant 
 
 
 

C. All parties and witnesses should now stand and/or come forward to be sworn in or to 
affirm the truth of their testimony  [Administer the oath to all those who may testify, as 
a group] If anyone refuses to be sworn (or affirm), then inform them their statements 
must not be treated as evidence on which to base a decision, but merely as arguments] 

 
VI. PRESENTATION OF CASE/EVIDENCE: 

A. County Staff Presentation of Case: County Planning Department staff please come 
forward and describe the application being considered; and share the facts gathered 
and recommendation provided by staff and/or the Planning Board re the application.  
- Planning Department Staff Application Timeline/Summary Info Z032624-01 
- 3/26/24 Application from Mary Smith 
- Copy of Notice of Public Hearing 
- Parcel Map and Aerial Overlay Map for 6798.00-78-4167 
- Relevant Materials from Planning Board Public QJ Hearing on 5/16/24 
- Planning Board Recommendation re: Land Use Plan Compatibility & Approval of 

Application 
- Parcel overlay maps showing location of flood zones in relation to subj property. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
- [Commissioners should ask questions at this time] 
- [Cross Examination if applicable] 
 
 
 
 
 



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures – SUPv2  Page 6 of 7 

B. Applicant: The applicant may come forward at this time and present their testimony 
and evidence to support the application if so desired.  Any specific written documents, 
surveys, pictures, or other evidence, and/or any expert witness testimony you would 
like to have considered should also be clearly identified and presented at this time.  
- [Commissioners should ask questions at this time] 
- [Cross Examination if applicable] 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C. Other Legitimate Parties with Material Interest in the Case: (if applicable) may come 
forward at this time and present their testimony and evidence to support or oppose 
the application if so desired at this time.  Any specific written documents, surveys, 
pictures, or other evidence, and/or any expert witness testimony you would like to 
have considered should also be clearly identified and presented at this time. 
- [Commissioners should ask questions at this time] 
- [Cross Examination if applicable] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D. Closing Statements and/or Rebuttals:  Are there any closing statements or any last 
rebuttal comments from: 
- Staff 
- Applicant 
- Other Legitimate Parties 
 
 

E. Board Q&A:  Are there any final questions from the Board for any of the parties, or any 
additional critical information the Board feels is required before it can begin 
deliberations on this matter in order to reach a final decision? 

 

  



Quasi-Judicial Hearing Procedures – SUPv2  Page 7 of 7 

VII. DELIBERATION & DECISION:  As a reminder, this Board is tasked with deciding if, based on 
the evidence actually presented, this proposal meets the applicable standards reviewed 
earlier in this hearing.  Your decision should not be based on personal preferences/opinions.  

FIRST Review the applicable specific legal standard(s) again in Article 5(B) 
SECOND Collectively identify which facts or specific items of evidence (including 

testimony) were most important to determining whether the proposed special 
use of property met the applicable legal standard(s). 
 

[Specific facts/evidence which impacted your decision should be itemized and 
described briefly below] 

 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
- 
 
 

THIRD Collectively discuss whether any special conditions upon the proposed use of the 
property should be required for the applicant’s proposed special use to better 
meet or satisfy the applicable legal standard(s).  

[Specific conditions, if any, should be itemized and described briefly below] 
- 
 
- 
 
- 

FOURTH - VOTE 
 

After careful and deliberate consideration of all the relevant facts and evidence 
presented in this matter, you may Vote: 

 To Continue 
 

or 

If you believe a continuance is needed MOVE TO CONTINUE THE HEARING 
(Include the specific location, date, 
and time in the motion) 

 To Deny 
 

or 

If you believe the Applicant generally 
does NOT meet the applicable legal 
standards (or would not meet them even 
under certain conditions) 

MOVE TO DENY THE PERMIT 
 
 

 To Approve If you believe the Applicant generally 
meets the applicable legal standards (or 
would meet them under certain 
conditions) 

MOVE TO APPROVE THE PERMIT* 
*(if applicable, describe any 
conditions in the motion)            

 To Continue   
 

VIII. MOTION TO ADJOURN THE PUBLIC/QUASI JUDICIAL HEARING (UNLESS CONTINUED) 



























 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     June 3, 2024 
 
ITEM:      FY25 Budget Ordinance   
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA presented the Commissioners with the Washington County 
FY25 Budget recommendation on May 6, 2024. By statute, there has to be a public 
hearing on the recommended budget before it can be approved. A public hearing was 
held on May 15th on the recommended budget. 
 
Tonight, Mr. Potter will ask the Board to approve the attached FY25 Budget Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: June 3, 2024    MEMO Date: May 31, 2024                 ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  FY25 BUDGET MESSAGE & RECOMMENDED ALLOCATION AMENDMENTS 
DEPARTMENT: COUNTY MANAGER/FINANCE 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Proposed FY25 Budget Ordinance (12 pgs) 

 
PURPOSE: To consider approval of the proposed FY25 Budget via the attached draft FY25 Budget Ordinance, 
as recommended by the Budget Officer, together with any staff/board recommended changes or modifications 
approved by the Board. 
 
BACKGROUND/STAFF DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:   

A. The Budget Officer presented the FY25 recommended budget together with the FY25 Budget Message to 
the Board at its regular 5/6/24 meeting.  Notice was provided as required by law for an official Public 
Hearing on the recommended budget at the Board’s 5/20/24 meeting. 
 

B. After an opportunity for further review, including an opportunity for department heads to review their 
individual recommended departmental budgets, and an opportunity for the Finance Office to pre-key the 
entire proposed budget into the county financial software for reconciliation purposes, the Budget Officer 
recommends the following amendments to the originally presented FY25 Budget as follows:  
 

i. General Fund (Fund 10) Allocation Amendments: 
10-3990-000 Appropriated Fund 

Balance 
+12,500 Additional revenue allocation to balance GF 

budget against $12,500 Animal Control Grant 
Exp. not picked up in original expense totals 
due to excel formula error. 

 
 
 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 
JASON SQUIRES 

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
acm@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 2 of 2 
 

ii. E911 Fund (Fund 69) Allocation Amendments: 

69-3370-000 E911 Telephone Surcharge +12,685 Pushed revenue up to full 
anticipated amount to cover 
additional Maint. Agmt Expense 
$16,811 not incl in original request. 

69-3990-000 Appropriated Fund Balance +4,126 Additional revenues needed to 
balance total expenses including 
$16,811 not incl in original request. 

69-9100-357 Maint Agreement – Wireless 
Communications 

$16,811 Additional expense not included in 
orig FY25 budget request.  Req via 
email from D. Fikes 5/13/24 

 
 

C. Additional modifications recommended by Budget Officer after the May 20th, 2024 Public Hearing/Board 
Meeting.  These modifications have been incorporated into the draft FY25 Budget Ordinance. 
- General Fund (Fund 10) Allocation Amendments: 

10-4340-TBD New Line: 
ADDITIONAL 
RESERVES 

+$99,905 Additional “5th Cent” reserve added to Fire 
Department Budget for Future Needs. 

10-4110-392 OTHER 
COMMUNITY 
CONTRIBUTIONS 

+$4,000 Additional funding for nonprofits which 
presented requests to the board for $2k each at 
5/20/24 meeting. 

10-8300-451 INSURANCE – 
PROPERTY & 
LIABILITY 

+$3,850 To update budget based on recent confirmation 
of actual premiums. 

10-3018-001 NCVTS-WASH 
CO BILL/CC 
CONTRA REV 

-35,000 To pre-book anticipated lost tax revenues from 
early vehicle tax payments which were not 
included in the original budget presented. 

10-3990-000 APPROPRIATED 
FUND BALANCE 

+155,255 To fund all of the proposed modifications 
(itemized above) made since the proposed 
budget was originally presented. 

 
D. FY25 Fee Schedule:  The proposed FY25 fee schedule was attached to an earlier Memo/handout at the 

5/20/24 Board Meeting and is recommended to be included with the Budget Ordinance upon adoption. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Review the updated information described in this Memo, and VOTE to: 
 

i. Approve the attached FY25 Budget Ordinance (including the additional modifications 
recommended by the Budget Officer in this Memo) [subject to any final modifications or 
adjustments made by the Board prior to its approval]; and 
 

ii. Authorize and direct the Board Chair to execute the Budget Ordinance once finalized 
in accordance with any final modifications or adjustments made by the Board prior to 
its approval; and 

 
iii. Authorize and direct staff to prepare and implement an updated Salary Schedule/Pay 

Table effective July 16th, 2024, reflecting both the recommended 2.5% COLA for all 
positions (other than County Manager), & all personnel reclassification 
recommendations made by the Budget Officer in the original Budget Message. 



Section 1.

1 $19,297,960
$7,434,420
($50,000)
$957,600
($35,000)
$1,800,000
$38,000
$281,000
$55,000
$1,200,000
$770,000
$245,000
$439,500
$300,000
$71,800
$500
$145,700
$177,150
$11,500
$375,000
$10,000
$3,435,234

Emergency Management Grants & Reimbursements $141,000
$215,307
$203,956
$54,701
$88,940
$149,146
$110,000
NA
$672,506

SRO Reimbursement

Prepayment Property Taxes
Article 39 One Cent Sales Tax
Article 40 1/2 Cent Sales Tax (Unrestricted 70%)

Detention Fees & Concessions

SL 2015-241 Sales Tax Redistribution

Appropriated Fund Balance

Cost Allocation from Water/Sanitation
Loan Proceeds - Installment Financing Vehicles

Article 42 1/2 Cent Sales Tax (Unrestricted 60%)

DOT Grants & Reimbursements

GENERAL FUND (10)
Taxes Ad-Valorem Current Year

Tax Penalties & Interest Current Year
Tax Penalties & Interest Prior Years

It is estimated that the revenues and Fund Balances of the funds hereafter listed will be 
available for the fiscal year indicated above, to finance the appropriations set forth in 
Section 2 below, and in accordance with the chart of accounts established for 
Washington County:

Ad-Valorem Taxes-Motor Vehicle
NCVTS, Contra, Refunds
Prior Year Taxes

Leased Vehicles Gross Tax

Other Intergovernmental

Misc Revenues & Sale of Fixed/Foreclosed Assets
Public Assistance Grants & Reimbursements

Fees & Licenses
Rents & Concessions
Interest Earned on Investments

In accordance with G.S. 159.13, be it ordained by the Board of Commissioners of Washington County, 
North Carolina as follows:

Tax Discounts

REVENUES

ABC Taxes & Profit Distribution

Other Misc Grants (NCDIT Radio Upgrade/Drug Rec Court)

SALES TAX - LOCAL 1/4 CENT - ST-A46 (100%)

Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2024 & Ending June 30th, 2025 (FY25)

Washington County Budget Ordinance

JCPC

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 1 of 12



2 $23,912,276
$330,000
$360,000
$2,646,948
$100,000
$400,000
$700,000
$19,375,328

3 $179,650
$85,000
$7,585
($600)
$81,515
$6,150
$0

4 $1,680,953
$80,000
$0
$0
$3,500
$1,403,154
$51,000
$6,000
$7,200
$20,000
$100
$60,000
$50,000
$0

5 $1,827,541
$7,500
$900,000
$550,000
$12,000
$18,000
$5,000
$0
$0
$335,041
$0

TRUIST Interest Earnings

Transfer from General Fund

Solid Waste Disposal Tax

Town Solid Waste Availability Fee Billed

Tax Discounts

DRAINAGE FUND (30)

TAP & Connection Fees

White Goods Disposal Fee/Grants

State Tire Tax Revenues Billed
State Tire Tax Revenues

Solid Waste User Fee County

Construction Contractor Disposal Fees

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND              

NC DENR GRANT

Metal/White Goods

WATER FUND (35)
Interest Earned on Investments
Utility Base Charges
Utility Consumption Charges

Stream Debris Removal Allocation from State

SCHOOL CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND (21)
Article 40 1/2 Cent Sales Tax (Restricted 30%)

Watershed Improvement Tax

Appropriated Watershed Reserve/Fund Balance

SANITATION FUND (33)

Article 42 1/2 Cent Sales Tax (Restricted (40%)
GRANT-NEEDS BASED PUBLIC SCHOOL CAP FUND

PK12 Rental Payment from WCS

Rural Solid Waste Tipping Fees Billed

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATION*             

NC DEQ Grants
Allocated Fund Balance

NC DOT Utility Relocation Reimbursements

Reconnection Fees

Transfer from General Fund

Penalties & Interest Utility Bills

Electronics Mgmt. Fund

Appropriated Fund Balance

Eddie Smith Drainage Assessment

Watershed Improvement Tax Prior Yrs/Penalties/Interest

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 2 of 12



6 $6,540,918 ^
$143,718
$5,452,000
$945,200

7 $2,464,368
$100,000
$840,000
$275,000
$0
$675,000
$399,620
$174,748
$0

8 $2,866,668

9 $234,463
$75,000
$15,600
$1,252
$99,905
$0
$42,706

10 $450,000

11 $62,790 ^

12 $210,000

13 $4,325,726

14 $237,326
$160,000
$0
$77,326

15 $123,078
$118,952
$4,126

WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (36)

NCDEQ VUR ROPER CONNECTION GRANT
NCDEQ VUR PEA RIDGE TRANS GRANT
NCDEQ GRANT-ASSET INVENTORY ASSESSMENT  

^(Provided for informational purposes only, see Project Ordinance/Budget)

CRF/ARP Grant Funds
Transfer from General Fund

Sale of Fixed Assets & Donations

EMS Standby Revenues

Appropriated Fund Balance

Appropriated Fund Balance

Tyrrell County EMS Contract
Transfer from General Fund

Fuel Sales

EMERGENCY 911 FUND (69)

TRAVEL & TOURISM FUND (63)

Appropriated Fund Balance

Motel Occupancy Tax

AIRPORT GRANTS FUND (38)

Farm Lease

Appropriated Fund Balance

Hangar Rentals

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND (50)

Transport Revenues

NCACC Cost Reimbursements
EMS Revenues

EMS FUND (37)

Interest Earned on Investments

AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND (39)

^(Provided for informational purposes only, see Project Ordinance/Budget)

SPECIAL PROJECTS/GRANTS FUND (58)

DSS TRUST & FC DEPOSITS FUND (51)

WC HOSP PENSION FUND (40)

911 Surcharge

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 3 of 12



16 $40,000
$40,000
$0
$0

$57,850,010 ^^
^^ (Not including informational only fund totals)

Section 2.

1 $19,297,960

$129,974

$574,068

$491,304
$575,679
$0
$189,639
$170,221
$208,583
$583,652
$697,812
$1,895,065
$75,326
$75,326
$75,326
$0
$1,252,615
$144,443
$0
$499,525
$129,156
$247,722
$0
$342,488
$256,509
$0
$4,172,773
$528,932

Washington Union SRO
Creswell SRO

Finance

Manager's Office

Information Technology

Plymouth High SRO

Social Services Admin
Social Services Economic Support

Board of Elections
Register of Deeds

Sheriff's Office

Professional Services

Facility Services
Buildings

Pines SRO

Tax Administration

TAX REVALUATION FUND (70)

Appropriated Fund Balance
Transfer from General Fund

Veteran Services

Fire Protection

Detention Center

GENERAL FUND (10)

Based upon the revenue estimates described in Section 1 above, the following amounts 
are hereby appropriated in the funds hereafter listed, and within any functions designated 
therein, to fund the operations of Washington County government and its activities for 
the fiscal year indicated above, and in accordance with the chart of accounts established 
for Washington County.

Emergency Management
COVID-19 CRF Funds

Planning
Forestry

TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS

Interest on Investments

Governing Board

Senior Center
Health Department
GIS

APPROPRIATIONS/EXPENSES

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 4 of 12



$187,512
$96,743
$1,735,000
$673,674
$43,240
$15,000
$167,806
$63,946
$216,500
$207,972
$5,000
$709,903
$0

$50,000
$0
$399,620
$0
$99,905
$0
$450,000
$70,000
$40,000
$700,000
$0
$50,000

2 $23,912,276
$100,000
$9,985,468
$10,807,629
$795,800
$1,042,000
$1,181,379

3 $179,650

4 $1,680,953

5 $1,827,541
$958,173.45
$0
$544,171
$325,197

TRUIST PRINCIPEL (STARTS IN FY 25)

Communications
Board of Education Current Exp

TRANSFER TO WCH PENSION FUND

Sanitation Fund (33)

Airport Operations Fund (39)

Designated for Future Appropriation

WATER FUND (35)

Water Treatment Expenses

Debt Service

Community Alternative

Mental Health
Medical Examiner
Cooperative Extension
Soil & Water

NC DEQ Grants

Sales Tax Redistribution

Library

NBPSC Grant (PK12 School)

School System Capital Outlay Fund (21)

Airport Grant Fund (38)

SCHOOL CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND (21)

Drainage Fund (30)

Capital Outlay

Contingency

Water Fund (35)

Transfer to Spec. Projects & Grants Fund (58)

Water Operations Expenses

SANITATION FUND (33)

Truist Funding (PK12 School)

Social Services Transportation
JCPC/Juvenile Service

Recreation

DRAINAGE FUND (30)

TRUIST INTERERST (STARTS IN FY 24)

Central  Services

Tax Re-Valuation Fund (70)

EMS Fund (37)

Water Debt Expenses

Transfers

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 5 of 12



6 $6,540,918 ^
$143,718
$5,452,000
$945,200

^(Provided for informational purposes only, see Project Ordinance/Budget)

7 $2,464,368
$2,147,904
$316,464
$0

8 $2,866,668

9 $234,463

10 $450,000

11 $62,790 ^
^(Provided for informational purposes only, see Project Ordinance/Budget)

12 $210,000

13 $4,325,726
$4,096,500
$100,000
$60,000
$69,226

14 $237,326
$132,926
$104,400

15 $123,078
$78,078
$45,000

16 $40,000

57,850,010 ^^
^^ (Not including informational only fund totals)

WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (36)
NCDEQ GRANT-ASSET INVENTORY ASSESSMENT  
NCDEQ VUR PEA RIDGE TRANS GRANT
NCDEQ VUR ROPER CONNECTION GRANT

DSS TRUST & FC DEPOSITS FUND (51)

Transport Expenses

ROOF/HVAC Reserves
PARTF GRANT LOCAL MATCH*                 

EMERGENCY 911 FUND (69)
PSAP Expenses
Capital Outlay (Backup PSAP)

EMTOC Bldg

WC HOSP PENSION FUND (40)

EMS FUND (37)
EMS Expenses

AIRPORT GRANTS FUND (38)

Econ Dev Motorsports Grant

TTA Admin
TTA Operations

Debt Service

AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND (39)

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS

TAX REVALUATION FUND (70)

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND (50)

SPECIAL PROJECTS/GRANTS FUND (58)

TRAVEL & TOURISM FUND (63)

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 6 of 12



Section 3.

Value Rate
$114,000,000.00 100.00%
$82,300,000.00 95.36%

$845,000,000.00 95.36%

$1,041,300,002.91 95.87%

Section 4.

Motor Vehicles
Public Utilities

Tax Base

Total Value/Combined Rate:

Any updated Washington County Fee Schedule attached to this Ordinance, shall be 
considered a part hereof, and shall be deemed adopted upon the approval of this 
Ordinance.  The terms and provisions thereof shall supersede, replace, and control over 
any and all inconsistent terms or provisions of any previously adopted fee schedules.  If 
no updated schedule is actually attached hereto, the most recent Washington County 
Fee Schedule actually approved by the Board of Commissioners is hereby ratified and 
reapproved, and shall be deemed to continue to apply with full force and effect, unless or 
until it is actually revised, replaced, or repealed by the Board of Commissioners. 

FEE SCHEDULE

All other Real & Personal Property

A SPECIAL WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT TAX, IS HEREBY LEVIED, at the rate of 
ONE CENT ($0.01) per one hundred dollars ($100) valuation on all real and personal 
property and motor vehicles listed for taxes as of January 1, 2024 for the specific 
purpose of generating the revenues referred to as "Watershed Improvement Tax" in 
Section 1 of this Ordinance, which revenues shall be deposited within the Drainage Fund 
of Washington County and used for the prevention of flood water and sedimentation 
damages, and for furthering the conservation, utilization, and disposal of water and the 
development of water resources.  This tax was authorized by referendum election held 
May 6, 1972.

THESE LEVIES, and the corresponding estimate for revenues generated therefrom are 
based on the following projected tax base and collection rates.

AN AD-VALOREM PROPERTY TAX, IS HEREBY LEVIED, at the rate of EIGHTY-
FOUR CENTS ($0.840) per one hundred dollars ($100) valuation on all real and 
personal property and motor vehicles listed for taxes as of January 1, 2024 for the 
specific purpose of generating the revenues referred to as Taxes Ad-Valorem Current 
Year and Ad-Valorem Taxes-Motor Vehicle in Section 1 of this Ordinance.  

TAX LEVIES

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 7 of 12



Section 5.

Section 6.

a.

b.
c.

d.

i.

e.

Any updated Washington County Salary Schedule attached to this Ordinance, shall be 
considered a part hereof, and shall be deemed adopted upon the approval of this 
Ordinance.  The terms and provisions thereof shall supersede, replace, and control over 
any and all inconsistent terms or provisions of any previously adopted Salary Schedules.  
If no such updated schedule is actually attached hereto, the most recent Washington 
County Salary Schedule actually approved by the Board of Commissioners is hereby 
ratified and reapproved, and shall be deemed to continue to apply with full force and 
effect, unless or until it is actually revised, replaced, or repealed by the Board of 
Commissioners.

Additional detailed breakdowns by line item are provided for informational purposes in 
the attached spreadsheets reflecting the projected revenues and allocated expenditures 
by Fund/Department.  In keying the budget, the Finance Officer is authorized to make 
minor adjustments of not more than $10 per fund to correct for rounding errors in order 
to maintain balance between revenues and expenses within the County Financial 
System Software while also expediting the budget process.

Reimbursement for mileage will be .50 cent per mile.

Departments must abide by the pre-audit procedures found in G.S. 159.28 together with 
any and all applicable county purchasing policies or laws when purchasing goods and 
services.

Property acquired by Washington County or any department through purchase, gifts, or 
other legal acquisitions will be disposed of in accordance with NCGS 160A Art. 12, or if 
applicable NCGS 15-11.1, and otherwise in accordance with applicable county policies 
or law.

Use of electronic or facsimile signature is authorized for use on County checks to the 
fullest extent permitted by law.

MISCELLANEOUS

PAY PLAN & SALARY SCHEDULE

Purchase Order Policy: Unless otherwise required by applicable law or the 
County Finance Officer, a standardized purchase order system shall be 
utilized to pre-obligate all individual purchases/contractual obligations 
exceeding: $999.99.  The County Manager is also authorized to delegate the 
authority to the County Finance Officer to unilaterally approve increases to 
initially approved Purchase Orders within available funding limits by not more 
than an additional 50% (but not exceeding an additional $999.99) whenever 
deemed necessary and advisable to expedite the processing and 
administration of such purchase orders modifications.

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 8 of 12



f. Governing Board:
i.

ii.

iii.

g.

h.

Section 7.
The Budget Officer (County Manager) is hereby granted the following authority:

a.

b.

c.

To make any changes to the Approved Salary Schedule, or to an Employee’s Salary, 
after first consulting with the Board either collectively or individually.

To make transfers between line items in the same department, or between department 
budgets supervised by one department head, or the Finance Officer without limitation.

Additionally, due to the demands of the office, the Chair will receive an in-
county travel stipend of $ 275.00 per month, whereas other Commissioners 
will receive $225.00 per month.  In-County travel for this section is defined as 
being within thirty (30) miles of the individual Commissioners' home.  

A cellular telephone stipend of $ 50.00 per month will also be provided to all 
Commissioners.

All outside agencies or other parties that receive county funding shall submit financial 
statements to the county each year at the end of any of their respective annual budget 
cycles in which such funding was received, and shall provide a written report to the 
Budget Officer regarding how such funds were actually used for the benefit of 
Washington County or its citizens if not otherwise disclosed within such financial 
statements or other regularly provided or publicly available reports.  Approved county 
payments may be delayed pending receipt of such information.  All such agencies or 
parties shall also submit a written request to the Budget Officer for the continuation of 
any such funding or for any new or revised funding no later than 90 days prior to the start 
of any fiscal year in which Washington County will be asked to provide such funding 
(March 31st).

BUDGET OFFICER AUTHORITY:

Copies of this Budget Ordinance shall be furnished by the Clerk to the Board to the 
County Manager, Finance Officer, Tax Administrator, and Board of Education for 
direction in the carrying out of their duties, and are available for public inspection in the 
Office of the Clerk to the Board.

To otherwise make transfers within any individual fund of up to $10,000 between 
individual departments, including contingency/designated for future purposes lines.  In 
emergency or special circumstances warranting a larger immediate transfer for good 
cause approved by both the Budget Officer and Finance Officer, this standard monetary 
cap may be exceeded, subject to subsequent Board ratification/approval.

In accordance with Washington County policy, members of the Board of 
Commissioners will receive a general stipend of $ 575.00 per month, whereas 
the Chair of the Board will receive $ 650.00 per month.  

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 9 of 12



d.

i.

e.

f.

g.

Section 8.
Annual Micro-Purchase Threshhold & Mini-Brooks Act 

Authority Statement:

WHEREAS from time to time, the County of Washington, North Carolina (the “County”) 
purchases goods and services using federal funding subject to the procurement 
standards in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart D; 

WHEREAS the County’s procurement of such goods and services is subject to certain 
federal procurement laws including without limitation those commonly known and 
referred to as “Uniform Guidance”, as well as any specific local policies related to federal 
procurement adopted and/or amended from time to time, including without limitation the 

County’s Uniform Guidance Conflicts of Interest Policy adopted November 5th, 2018; 

WHEREAS the County is a non-Federal entity under the definition set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 
200.1;

WHEREAS pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.320(a)(1)(ii), a non-Federal entity may award micro-
purchases without soliciting competitive price or rate quotations if the non-Federal entity 
considers the price to be reasonable based on research, experience, purchase history or 
other information and documents that the non-Federal entity files accordingly; 

To the extent deemed necessary by the Budget Officer or County Finance 
Officer, the Board Chair is also hereby authorized without further consent 
being required, to execute grant applications and/or grant agreements on 
behalf of the County to the same extent, and subject to the same limitations 
upon such authority provided to the Budget Officer hereinabove.

To apply for and accept grant funding unless application or acceptance directly by the 
Board is required by any applicable grantor source, provided any local match required 
must be approved by the Board if not otherwise allocated within the approved Budget, 
and to execute any necessary grant agreements to facilitate the same. All grant funds 
must be budgeted before being spent.  

All Budget Amendments and/or Transfers made by the Budget Officer hereunder shall 
be reported to the Board of Commissioners at their next regular meeting following such 
transfers, or as soon thereafter as possible, and shall be deemed ratified by the Board 
unless action is taken by the Board to nullify any such transfer.

To approve change orders for contracts approved by the Board up to the greater of 5% 
of the contract amount or $30,000 per occurrence provided the total allocated budget for 
any project is not exceeded as a result.  Any such approvals shall be reported to the 
Board at or before its next regular meeting.

During the month of June only, the Budget Officer may make any necessary inner-
departmental and/or inter-departmental budget transfers/amendments within any single 
fund, and in any amount deemed reasonably necessary, to complete year end spending 
and close out the fiscal year.  Nothing herein shall authorize the Budget Officer to 
increase or decrease the overall budgeted amount for any fund without prior approval of 
the Board.

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 10 of 12



1

a.

b.

c. $50,000, for the purchase of services not subject to competitive bidding under 
North Carolina law; and 

The County has qualified as a low-risk auditee in accordance with the criteria 
set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.520. Therefore, in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 
200.320(a)(1)(iv)(A) and the applicable provisions of North Carolina law, the 
County hereby self-certifies the following micro-purchase thresholds: 

WHEREAS pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.320(a)(1)(iv), such self-certification must include 
(1) a justification for the threshold, (2) a clear identification of the threshold, and (3) 
supporting documentation, which, for public institutions, may be a higher threshold 
consistent with State law; 

WHEREAS G.S.143-129(a) and G.S. 143-131(a) require the County to conduct a 
competitive bidding process for the purchase of (1) apparatus, supplies, materials, or 
equipment where the cost of such purchase is equal to or greater than $30,000, and (2) 
construction or repair work where the cost of such purchase is greater than or equal to 
$30,000; 

WHEREAS North Carolina law does not require a unit of local government to 
competitively bid for purchase of services other than services subject to the qualifications-
based selection process set forth in Article 3D of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina 
General Statutes (the “Mini-Brooks Act”); 

WHEREAS G.S.143-64.32 permits units of local government to exercise, in writing, an 
exemption to the qualifications-based selection process for services subject to the Mini-
Brooks Act for particular projects where the aggregate cost of such services does not 
exceed $50,000; and 

WHEREAS pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.320(a)(1)(iv), the Washington County Board of 
Commissioners now desires to adopt higher micro-purchase thresholds than those 
identified in 48 C.F.R. § 2.101; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 

$30,000, for the purchase of apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment; 

$30,000, for the purchase of construction or repair work; 

WHEREAS pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 200.320(a)(1)(iii), a non-Federal entity is responsible for 
determining and documenting an appropriate micro-purchase threshold based on 
internal controls, an evaluation of risk, and its documented procurement procedures; 

WHEREAS pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.320(a)(1)(iv), a non-Federal entity may self-certify 
on an annual basis a micro-purchase threshold not to exceed $50,000 and maintain 
documentation to be made available to a Federal awarding agency and auditors in 
accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.334; 

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 11 of 12



d.

2

3

4

5

Section 9.

ATTEST:

$50,000, for the purchase of services subject to the qualifications-based 
selection process in the Mini-Brooks Act, G.S. 143-64.31; provided that such 
threshold shall apply to a contract only if the County has exercised an 
exemption to the Mini-Brooks Act, in writing, for a particular project pursuant to 
G.S. 143-64.32. The Board of Commissioners hereby delegates authority to 
grant such exemptions to the County Manager. If the exemption is not 
authorized, the micro-purchase threshold shall be $0; 

The self-certification made herein shall be effective as of July 1st of the 
current calendar year, and shall be applicable until June 30th of the next 
succeeding calendar year. 

In the event that the County receives funding from a federal grantor agency 
that adopts a threshold more restrictive than those contained herein, the 
County shall comply with the more restrictive threshold when expending such 
funds; 

The County shall maintain documentation to be made available to a Federal 
awarding agency, any pass-through entity, and auditors in accordance with 2 
C.F.R. § 200.334; and

The County Manager is hereby authorized to revise, if necessary, the Federal 
Purchasing Policy of the County to reflect the increased micro-purchase 
thresholds specified herein, and to take all such actions, individually and 
collectively, to carry into effect the purpose and intent of the foregoing 
resolution. 

Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board, MMC, NCMCC

The Washington County Board of Commissioners, having first conducted a public 
hearing in accordance wtih applicable law, prior to the adoption of its annual budget 
ordinance (this Budget Ordinance) for the upcoming fiscal year; which hearing was held 
at: ___________________________________________________________ on or 
about the _____ day of ________________, 20____ , does hereby adopt this Budget 
Ordinance this _____ day of _____________, 20_____.

ADOPTION

Ann Keyes, Chair of the Board of County Commissioners

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY25 - Page 12 of 12



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  June 3, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 
 
See attached. 
 
 
 
 























































































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   9 
 
       DATE:     June 3, 2024 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, or Staff 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 Department Head Reports from May 2024 (see attached) 
 Statistics Reports from April 2024 (see attached) 

 
a)  ABC Board Budget Amendment FY23-24 

There is no action required on this item.  The ABC Board is required to submit it 
to the Commissioners.  
 

b) ABC Board Proposed Budget FY24-25 
There is no action required on this item.  The ABC Board is required to submit it 
to the Commissioners.  

 
 
  



 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
June 3, 2024 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING: 
The EMS Division currently has (4) Full-Time Paramedic positions available.  The Transport 
Division has two Full-Time EMT positions available, one Full-Time EMT on medical leave.  We 
are also accepting applications for Part-Time positions for all levels (EMT, A-EMT, and 
Paramedic). The Full-Time EMT that completed Paramedic training in March of this year 
tendered a resignation to take a position with Chowan County EMS and a 5-year employee has 
also tendered a resignation to take a position with Dare County EMS.  Both remained with us as 
part time Medics. We still have two Full-Time EMTs that should complete Paramedic training 
through Martin Community College in the fall of this year and two Full-Time EMT’s completing 
Advanced EMT training through MCC in July. 
 
SAFETY: 
We continue to participate in the Injury Prevention System program through the NCACC 
monthly with safety sheets and will begin an Injury Prevention College on NeoGov soon. 
 
SYSTEM BUSINESS: 
UNC PECC+ Program :    Our PECC+ Coordinator has moved to Part-Time, she will be 
continuing to handle the program. 
 
Duke RACE-CARS Trial Program:  Both LUCAS Chest Compression Systems have been 
received and the 2 remaining vehicle mounting systems came in this week. There will also be a 
CPR initiative and AED presentation at the Bear Festival this weekend!  
 

 

National EMS Week 50th Anniversary  

Thank you for your continued support of Washington-Tyrrell County EMS. 
 
 
 
 



 

Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
Recreation is good.  In T- Ball, Baseball, and Softball we had some players to sign up in all age 
groups, but not enough to start our league.  We are signing up and playing flag football for all 
age boy and girls.  We have 3 basketball teams going to the State Games in Concord, NC  on 
June 14-16. This year we hope to win the gold. 
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
Filing begins June 10th at noon and runs through July 5th, 2024, for Soil and Water Conservation. 

I finished the canvass for the 2nd Primary, and everything ran successfully. I am now getting 
ready to sort ballots and re-run them through the DS200 machines. 

 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 

Staffing: 

Doris Hoggard returned to her position 05/01/24 after being out for a family-related emergency; 
Malasia Davenport who filled in for her temporarily left her position on 04/30/24. 
 
Programming: 
Summer Reading begins on 06/26/24 with Windy Acres Petting Zoo performing at 1:00 PM; the 
rest of the programs ending on 08/07/24 are as follows: 
July 3rd – Slime Adventures with Washington County Library (1:00 PM) 
July 10th – Nature Out Loud! with Paul Mazzei (1:00 PM) 
July 17th – OBX Lizard Land with the DiDario’s (1:00 PM) 
July 24th – Puppeteering Adventure with Gene Galligan (1:00 PM) 
July 31st – Busy Bees! with Chowan County Beekeepers (1:00 PM) 
August 7th – Magic Show with Rob Westcott (1:00 PM) 
 
Grassroots performance begin with John Brown Jazz performing at the library on 05/31/24 at 
2:00 PM; his ensemble will be performing on the Harbor Town Cruises boat both Friday and 
Saturday night – the rest of the programs in this series ending on 06/17/24 are as follows: 
June 8th – Willa Brigham (Storyteller) at Washington County Library (11:00 AM) 
June 10th – Tarish Pipkins (Puppeteer) at Washington County Library (1:00 PM) 
June 17th – Sunya Folayan (Percussionist) at Washington County Library (1:00 PM) 
 



 

WCL is bringing back Reading Logs for the summer; we are looking for 25 dedicated readers to 
participate in this challenge – logs will be dispersed the week of June 17th with a breakdown of 
how to participate/prizes earned.  
 
Other Library Business: 
Library was pressure-washed and landscaping will begin shortly to improve the looks of our 
grounds.  
 
 
Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 

 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 
  
 
 



 

Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 
 

1. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services – sending tax 
information, verifying balances due, completing tax certifications, adding attorney 
fees and/or suit cost.  They have requested another referral foreclosure list. I 
explained to them that it would be later this year before we would have the chance 
to submit another list as we are currently working on having the tax bills ready to 
mail in July and are down 2 people in personnel.   

2. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling value adjustments, 
refunds, releases, address corrections and general questions regarding motor 
vehicles.  

3. Continue to verify PINs for Deed filings, process Tax Certifications and assign 
addresses in GIS – we had several address requests this month. We have a variation 
of these daily.  

4. Continue to work with the landfill. They call us for verification of ownership 
of a property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and that person 
is going into the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their debris or 
trash, the landfill calls us to make sure they own the property at the address 
they have given.  

5. The Statistical report was submitted. 
6. Christal Watkins processed the refunds after the Commissioners approval for 

them.  
7. Sent mapping updates to Joe with Atlas. Had correspondence with Joe several 

times for assistance with mapping requests.  
8. Emailed our contact with Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC regarding their monthly 

payment, she stated the request was being sent to her treasurer for the payment.  
9. Property Tax Exemption applications continue to be submitted. The deadline is 

June 1st for a timely application.  
10. Overall, very busy with the filing of forms, phone calls, emails, and office 

visits.  
11. The data entry is being completed for the new construction reviews.  When this 

is complete we will mail the assessment letters to the taxpayers, they will have 
30 days to appeal the values.  

12. Received debt set-off payments this month. 
13. Hollie has worked diligently to process the deed transfers. She is currently 

assisting with the processing of our personal property listings.  Each one has to 
be valued and entered into our tax program.  

14. Hollie’s new office setup is near completion, we will be working with Darlene 
Fikes to complete the computer setup this week.  

15. Rosa was out of the office a couple of weeks due to a medical issue.  Jerrian 
and Hollie picked up the pace on the processing of the personal property and 
business personal property listings.  

16. Darlene Fikes and I discussed the conversion of our current software over to 
Keystone with our contracted person from Cox and Co. on May 2nd. We will be 
back in contact with her this week.  
 



 

Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
Permits written  19 

Inspections completed  50  
 (in Washington County – does not include school or Tyrrell County) 
 
Fire Inspection complete for Washington County Detention and Pocosin Innovative Charter 
School 

Continue to monitor third party reports from WCPK-12; Royal Farms; Dollar General projects 
daily 

Several visits to the School and Royal Farms project with multiple inspections at each visit 

Conference calls – municipalities   4 
   stop work order; Occupant Load; ETJ zoning; Fire Marshal authority; flood zone questions 
 
Floodplain reviews     3 

Plan Reviews      3 

Map Reviews – not subject    4 

– 3; 10; 17; 24; 31  Tyrrell County Inspections/conferences with staff on Fridays  

Multiple conference calls to contractors and grant inspectors re: Tyrrell County projects – 
reviewed contract between Tyrrell  County and Washington County for inspections – assisted 
Royal Farms contractors– floodplain clarification with state officials since Tyrrell is not CRS 
participant; reviewed Tyrrell Ordinances – School shop in floodplain – discussed Elevation with 
Columbia 

Monitor Fire Watch at Washington Regional Medical Center 

16th Planning Board to include Public Hearing – referred to Board of Adjustment for approval – 
Special Use for Nixon cemetery 

  Zoning Regulations 101 -Class with entire Planning Board – included Jason Squires and Emma   
Corbett –  

23rd   CAT meeting -virtually – 

27th – Memorial Day Holiday -  

29    Scheduled meeting with WC Schools re PK-12 

30- Staff – class at Vernon James for sheltering  



 

Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
  
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 

1. Created Ranking Forms for applications applying to Cost Share Programs CCAP 
and AGwrap. 

2. Updated application for Cost Share Programs. 
3. Purchased Canon Printer Color Image CLASS MF753 Cdw. and Toner High 

Yield. 
4. Spoke to a couple of landowners about CCAP and Marsh Sills on waterfront 

property and Dog Waste options in parks. 
5. Marked multiple locations with beaver nuisance issues within Roper and 

Plymouth and communicated with control agent. 
6. Began Drone pilot classes at Beaufort Community College on Tuesdays and 

Thursdays from 5pm to 9pm to prepare for the Part 107 Exam. May 6,2024 Thru 
May 30,2024. 

7. Partnered with Chowan County Soil and Water to Present the Soil Tent at a local 
school for education outreach. 4/16/2024 

8. Reviewed multiple contracts and created JAA Approval folders for Cover Crop, 
Residue and Tillage Management, and Land Smoothing. 

9. Updated District/County Website by adding multiple links for descriptions of 
programs offered by the Cost Share Program, pictures of education outreach, and 
more. 

10. Got an update from Contractor about Aquatic Weed Spraying intended to get 
started the “end of May”. 

11. Inspected Eddie Smith Canal and Scuppernong River. Both have major blockages 
of alligator grass about 300 yards long on two locations. One after Maul Creek 
towards the Scuppernong and the other on Eddie Smith Canal behind Gus Town 
Road. Present:5/28/24 

 
 
Landfill 
Mike Gray 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 



 

Detention:   
 

 
 No report submitted from the other departments. 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
  
 VoIP: Issue with caller-id is on BrightSpeed’s side and really don’t know that we will ever 

get that corrected. Two invoices for renewal of Juniper subscriptions have been corrected by 
VC3.  Added two VoIP phones at Recreation Center and adjusted hours the phones ring. 
Worked with Missy on credit of $7,397.99 we should have received from VC3. Gather all 
documentation on the credit and send email requesting to resolved by June 30th. Waiting for 
a response. 

 
 IT Move: Office has been moved to basement and continue to work on putting items in place. 

Server, core switches, patch panel, firewall and onsite backups remain on the first floor Tax 
office.  

 
 Mediacom: Completed work at Senior Center. Received another notification stating 

changes for Courtesy Accounts using tv service. Mediacom will supply digital receiver 
and local tv at no charge, but those continuing to use variety tv there will be a charge. 
Send documentation I have on current accounts to Account Manager to review and 
verify. Once verified I will get with Department Heads to determine needs. 

 
 FY24 911 Grant: Equipment has been ordered by Mobile Communications and waiting for 

delivery. Requested status from Mobile Communications.   
 
 FY25 911 Grant: Gather information requested by Laurie. 

 
 Tax Office Software Migration: Connection to server has been made with Cox & Company. 

 
 Other Items: 

 
--Assist Sheriff to set up & test Zoom. 
--Setup connection to Tax server for Cox & Company. 



 

--Discussions with Missy on issues with AT&T & US Cellular. 
--Two additional VoIP phones quoted/ordered/installed at the Recreation Center. Adjust  
   auto attendant. 
--Get Courthouse floor plans for State vendor that will be running fiber. 
--Work with State vendor to run fiber from Clerk’s office to Highway Patrol. 
--Work with VC3 & Missy on billing for Juniper renewals-we have not purchased Juniper  
   devices from VC3. This was corrected. 
--Make a list of unresolved issues with VC3 & submit ticket to have corrected. 
--Place Dell order for Recreation Center. 
--Work with Missy on multiple FY23-24 items. 
--Work with Dell & Finance on Dell past due invoice. 
--Work with Motorola, Missy & 911 Board on Motorola SUA amount that needs to be added  
    to FY24-25 budget. 
--Discuss with Ricky & Randall the need for a ground wire on the CAD cabinet. Installed. 
--Setup work order link on Recreation pc & train Randy how to use. 
--Mobile Communications – sync NetClock with 911 equipment. 
--Mediacom completed disconnection of Courtesy Account at Senior Center & add basic tv  
   to County Account. Troubleshoot various issues. 
--Complete install of new Land Records pc for Tax Office. 
--Refurbish Tina Dunlow’s pc to be used in Tax Office for connection to Elite. Troubleshoot  
   issues. 
--Review agreement from BrightSpeed for fiber connection at Elections with Missy-sign &  
   email. 
--Email info on FY2025 911 Grant to Curtis. Possible use for new building. Contact Kristen  
   for additional info. Gather info for Laurie. 
--Work with Missy on $7,397.99 credit due from VC3. 
--Issue connecting to AssessWeb from outside network-give to SSG & resolved. 
--Check equipment received in Sheriff’s office for Johnny Barnes-appears to be VINE. 
--Quote/Order/Install ups battery in 911 Center. 
--Work with AT&T on Landfill internet connection. 
--Troubleshoot issue with Curtis outgoing emails & Missy’s incoming email from Health 
   Dept. Discovered emails with Health Dept url was quarantined by O365. Contact Health  
   Dept & let them know. 
--Assist Southern Software with issue on Michele’s pc. 
--Troubleshoot issue with monitor in Tax office. 
--Attend Commissioner meeting and Departmental Meeting. 
--Attend County Manager group meetings. 
--Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
--Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
--Verify CopyPro invoice for Finance. 
--Complete Weekly Activity Report for County Manager 
--Reconcile Budget Statement. 



 

Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Airport 
Mary Moscato 
                         
   Project Update:  

• Airfield Lighting Improvement Project 
 The contractors are on-site, and the project is actively progressing. The project includes the 

replacement of runway edge and runway threshold lighting, replacement of precision approach 
path indicator system (PAPI) , replacement of runway end indicator lights (REIL), electrical 
vault modifications, and an existing beacon light fixture to be replaced. 

• RPZ Obstruction 
 This project is currently under design. It consists of clearing approximately 33 acres of trees 

from the approach areas of Runway 3 and 21. The project includes design, permitting, bidding, 
CATEX, and grant assistance services. This project may include, but is not limited to, such 
construction elements as clearing, clearing and grubbing, erosion and sediment control, 
construction safety and phasing plans, turf restoration, and other similar construction items. 

• AWOS 
 FAA approved Option 2 (NE of the hangers) for the location of the AWOS. The scope and fee 

for the project were submitted to Department Of Aviation on May 15th.  
 
Other Activities: 

• Ordered and received a split-load of Avgas fuel. 
 Contacted DOA about available AIG funds and followed up with Avcon to see if we had any 

projects in the works that would qualify for the AIG grant. 
 NCDEQ performed a Stormwater Permit inspection. NCDEQ conducted a Stormwater Permit 

inspection. Their report identified several violations that need to be addressed.   
 

Participation in Meetings:  
 Monthly Department Head Meeting 
 Conducted the Quarterly Airport Advisory Committee Meeting 
 
Revenue Update: 
 April Fuel Sales:  $2,793.30 
 Total fuel sales year-to-date:  $58,387.71 
 Hangar Leases:  Successfully collected 100% of our hangar lease payments, totaling $15,600.     

 
 
Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Unfinished Business: 

• Cleaning of HVAC coils 



 

• Weekly and Monthly PM’s 
 
Maintenance: 

• Completed installing parking lot lights at the Airport. 
• Completed removing and installing furniture in the Finance Office. 
• Completed 58 work orders. 

 
Upcoming Projects: 

• Start removing four walls and rebuilding three walls at DSS. 
• Continue with PM’s. 

 
 
Register of Deeds 
Timothy Esolen 
 
Pretty much business as usual.  Here’s a brief summary of work. 
 
Marriage Licenses issued: = 4 
Deed related recordings (deeds, deeds of trust, modifications, etc.) = 86 
Deaths recorded = 9 (4 Heart Related) (3 Cancer) (1 Aspiration) (1 car accident) 
Births recorded = 0 
 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals
WC Dispatched 164 158 141 150 142 169 133 134 145 129 1465
WC Transported 109 124 113 113 104 112 106 98 101 94 1074
WC Refusals 55 34 28 37 38 57 27 36 44 35 391

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 0 1 3 1 1 0 1 2 0 0 9
SNF to Doctors 112 146 137 132 113 111 153 126 114 118 1262
Hospital Discharges 7 8 8 8 8 10 9 7 6 10 81
EMS Back Up 0 5 3 5 5 2 5 1 2 10 38

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals
TC Dispatched 49 51 63 50 74 55 68 62 50 62 584
TC Transported 31 41 54 38 55 39 51 49 36 42 436
TC Refusals 18 10 9 12 19 16 17 13 14 20 148

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HC Transported 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY23-24

Washington County

Tyrrell County

36%

26%

9%

14%

11%
4%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY23-24
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 44.54 44.29 89.90 79.91 47.12 61.53 80.70 72.12 55.02 55.06 630.19
Inert Debris 41.06 31.47 1.99 28.62 4.39 22.25 0 102.64 290.52 24.45 547.39
Scrap Metal 1.06 2.13 1.24 1.02 0.81 1.12 1.59 0.93 1.46 1.12 12.48
C&D 96.28 84.36 29.31 43.11 26.52 25.01 54.47 231.12 61.52 106.26 757.96
Tires 12 4.59 1.79 6.87 2.8 5.76 5.55 4.59 1.49 4.1 49.57

LANDFILL  (in tons)
FY 23-24

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $3,495.00 3,800.46$      3,663.00$   6,607.00$   1,220.00$   2,891.00$   2,111.00$   2,812.50$   7,815.00$   5,071.40$   1,458.00$   $40,944.36
Zoning 150.00$    75.00$         275.00$      50.00$         225.00$      25.00$         75.00$         300.00$      175.00$      150.00$      25.00$         $1,525.00

Reinspect 300.00$    75.00$         150.00$      725.00$      275.00$      -$             150.00$      550.00$      275.00$      250.00$      225.00$      $2,975.00
SWUF $0.00 -$             406.25$      62.50$         -$             -$             656.25$      -$             -$             218.75$      $1,343.75

HO Recovery 
Fee $0.00 20.00$         10.00$         -$             -$             -$             -$             20.00$         -$             $50.00

Total $3,945.00 $3,970.46 $4,504.25 $7,444.50 $1,720.00 $2,916.00 $2,336.00 $4,318.75 $8,265.00 $5,491.40 $1,926.75 $0.00 $46,838.11

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY23-24

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

$6,000.00

$7,000.00

$8,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY23-24) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

88%

3%
6% 3%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning
Reinspect SWUF
HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                      
Current Year Tax 1,292,918.24$    1,841,875.98$    327,668.62$      319,355.85$   260,168.47$   1,568,567.71$    826,014.32$      107,468.28$   101,027.01$   249,698.07$   6,894,762.55$                     
Current Yr Discount (25,476.78)$        (21,654.99)$        (526.19)$            4.54$               2.59$               -$                      -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 (47,650.83)$                         
Current Year Penalty 787.65$               2,771.65$           1,056.76$          202.13$           200.81$           3,519.82$            1,665.58$          816.67$           299.47$           569.58$           11,890.12$                          
Current Year Interest -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 2.59$                    3,635.25$          3,478.73$        3,688.36$        19,609.50$     30,414.43$                          

Watershed Tax Current Yr 15,097.27$         21,172.24$         3,795.04$          3,706.23$        3,018.07$        18,412.19$          9,821.04$          1,271.09$        1,110.62$        5,495.85$        82,899.64$                          
Watershed Discount (302.62)$              (250.79)$             (5.81)$                 -$                 -$                 -$                      -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 (559.22)$                               
Watershed Penalty 9.16$                   31.98$                 12.61$                1.77$               2.13$               41.86$                  11.63$                9.45$               3.54$               6.65$               130.78$                                
Watershed Interest -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                      41.34$                37.33$             39.04$             299.67$           417.38$                                
Prior Year Tax 18,352.43$         36,799.48$         14,030.87$        11,746.94$     13,152.62$     30,868.77$          38,677.46$        15,816.63$     16,594.89$     17,825.54$     213,865.63$                        
Prior Year Penalty 68.78$                 417.40$               11.30$                11.32$             8.98$               56.62$                  128.45$              18.08$             35.92$             373.62$           1,130.47$                             
Prior Year Interest 2,722.59$            9,883.52$           1,948.27$          1,603.26$        2,701.76$        7,245.98$            7,520.79$          3,937.21$        4,139.65$        5,820.03$        47,523.06$                          
Prior Year Watershed 149.83$               462.06$               82.27$                107.42$           120.87$           178.34$               610.30$              191.08$           100.63$           18,419.66$     20,422.46$                          
Prior Year WS Penalty 0.71$                   4.84$                   0.13$                  0.36$               0.24$               0.67$                    1.18$                  0.75$               0.44$               1,823.93$        1,833.25$                             
Prior Year WS Interest 170.91$               532.50$               138.46$              148.78$           136.30$           255.79$               333.98$              226.01$           194.63$           3,002.32$        5,139.68$                             
Bad Checks -$                     -$                     -$                    (173.27)$          -$                 -$                      -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 (173.27)$                               
Prepayments 500.95$               5,956.02$           2,762.60$          2,006.00$        2,759.13$        2,763.67$            8,484.73$          7,213.74$        8,714.68$        7,676.18$        48,837.70$                          

TOTAL 1,304,999.12$    1,898,001.89$    350,974.93$      338,721.33$   282,271.97$   1,631,914.01$    896,946.05$      140,485.05$   135,948.88$   330,620.60$   -$                -$  7,310,883.83$                     

Initiated 0
Amount -$                                      
Satisfied/Cancelled 0
Amount -$                                      

*

87966.77 85,307.73$         77,214.79$        74,163.68$     66,628.89$     74,298.54$          83,382.60 80,066.76 97,719.73$     91,628.37 730,411.09$                        

 -$                                      
Billed Current Yr 1,315,210.00$    1,315,210.00$                     
Collected All Years 273,626.13$       265,537.20$       72,876.02$        61,864.46$     60,475.94$     174,442.14$        119,465.51$      33,731.11$     52,399.37$     47,788.02$     1,162,205.90$                     
Bad Checks -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                      -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                                      

TOTAL 273,626.13$       265,537.20$       72,876.02$        61,864.46$     60,475.94$     174,442.14$        119,465.51$      33,731.11$     52,399.37$     47,788.02$     -$                -$  1,162,205.90$                     

Billed Current Yr 6,583.70$            -$                     -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                      -$                    -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                -$                                      
Collected Current Yr 1,055.97$            1,825.37$           170.37$              618.59$           145.76$           1,604.27$            1,033.69$          -$                 0.35$               5.90$               -$                6,460.27$                             
TOTAL 1,055.97$            1,825.37$           170.37$              618.59$           145.76$           1,604.27$            1,033.69$          -$                 0.35$               5.90$               -$                6,460.27$                             

Collected Current Yr 13,576.76$         27,943.80$         16,688.19$        21,036.21$     29,251.70$     26,519.82$          47,338.15$        1,358.21$        683.66$           1,720.24$        186,116.74$                        

Creswell Levy 7,708.14$            19,091.33$         3,106.76$          1,908.22$        3,863.21$        41,771.70$          22,576.08$        319.87$           1,094.96$        551.69$           101,991.96$                        

1,600,966.12$    2,297,707.32$    521,031.06$      498,312.49$   442,637.47$   1,950,550.48$    1,170,742.08$   255,961.00$   287,846.95$   472,314.82$   -$                -$  9,498,069.79$                     

Eddie Smith Drainage

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax and Tag Collections
Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX
FY23-24

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Tax Fees

Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments TOTAL



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 7271
Unduplicated Attendees 69 79 75 83 71 65 80 81 87 78 768
Total Guest Check-Ins 48 16 27
New Particpants 0 5 1 5 5 11 2 1 1 31
Center-Sponsored Events 367 213 292 157 295 218 338 435 306 334 2955
Special Events 99 63 112 147 142 145 127 194 156 214 1399
Caregiver's Support Groups 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
Exercise Room 36 40 25 38 26 24 40 50 45 33 357
Fitness Workout 13 15 5 6 6 5 5 14 8 12 89
Yoga 3 3 1 1 3 2 3 9 7 5 37
Chair Exercise 65 64 56 67 51 14 35 71 57 50 530
Line Dance 45 49 42 38 28 11 35 44 42 45 379
Crafts With Sandra Lee 15 20 13 16 14 12 15 12 12 13 142
Drop-in Activities 10 35 36 27 27 29 38 31 32 25 290
Pickle Ball 24 10 2 3 2 17 17 28 7 4 114
Sewing with Geraldine 19 17 21 17 11 18 6 10 15 10 144
Computer Wi-fi 5 11 0 0 1 0 2 6 2 4 31

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 761 865 811 962 777 620 749 1037 954 976 0 0 8512
Congregate Meals Served 162 190 165 195 152 139 142 312 299 293 2049
Home-Delivered Meals Served 599 675 646 767 625 481 607 725 655 683 6463
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA 344.00$  232.00$  437.74$   604.62$  378.31$  464.52$ 499.00$  689.84$   447.75$   130.00$ 95.50$ -$  4,323.28$  
Congregate Meals 46.00$    52.00$     69.00$     44.62$     53.31$     -$        44.00$     $156.30 $96.25 561.48$      
Home-Delivered Meals 140.00$  90.00$     262.00$   450.00$  220.00$  380.00$ 365.00$  240.00$  215.00$  2,362.00$  
Activity Fees 155.00$  90.00$     105.00$   110.00$  105.00$  75.00$   60.00$     75.00$     90.00$     90.00$    60.00$ 1,015.00$  
Donations 3.00$       -$         1.74$        9.52$      30.00$     218.54$   46.50$     40.00$    35.50$ 384.80$      

SENIOR CENTER
FY23-24

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Meals Served (FY23-24)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

46%

22%

0%
6%

1%1%

8%

6%
2%

4% 2%2%0%

Senior Center Activities (FY23-24) Total Guest Check-Ins

Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Groups

Exercise Room

Fitness Workout

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Line Dance

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Drop-in Activities

Pickle Ball

Sewing with Geraldine

Computer Wi-fi



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

55 45 53 51 36 48 42 40 57 51 49 0 527 527
Male 29 26 33 30 21 29 25 26 37 33 30 319
Female 11 5 9 5 2 6 8 7 14 12 14 93
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 7
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

13 13 10 15 12 12 8 7 6 6 5 107 107
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0US PRISON TRANSPORT 

412

0

1

0

0

0

7

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

SMCP

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY23-24

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

98%

0%0%0%0%0%2%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY23-24)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 1045 973 880 993 852 896 882 873 989 943 0 0 9326
Law Enforcement 786 765 697 817 701 678 693 662 688 663 7150

Animal Control 78 39 25 10 0 16 42 59 69 59 397
EMS 181 169 158 166 151 202 147 152 170 154 1650

Reported Incidents 28 28
Total Arrests 5 0 2 5 0 4 6 10 3 8 13 0 56

Misdemeanor Arrests 2 1 2 0 3 4 3 3 5 4 27
Felony Arrests 3 1 3 0 1 2 7 0 3 9 29

Total Papers Served 40 0 50 59 37 36 41 19 30 40 40 0 392
Criminal Papers Served 7 15 6 0 7 3 1 2 37 4 82

Civil Papers Served 33 35 53 37 29 38 18 28 3 36 310
Total Papers Outstanding 31 0 46 12 21 17 25 28 17 35 21 0 253
Criminal Papers Outstanding 16 32 6 6 2 0 0 2 11 13 88

Civil Papers Outstanding 15 14 6 15 15 25 28 15 24 8 165
Gun Permits Issued  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0
Conceals Pending  N/A 7 7

Concealed Permits Issued  N/A 16 10 12 14 10 62

SHERRIFF
FY23-24

78%

4%

18%

Dispatched Calls (FY23-24)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

YTD TOTALS

28 27 29

82

310

88

165

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY23-2)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals
Water Billed FY 22-23  (in 

million gallons)
7.707 7.855 8 6.766 7.766 7.706 6.657 6.814 7.014 6.519 7.56 8.956 90

Water Billed  FY 23-24 (in 
million gallons)

8.08 8.93 7.196 6.896 7.547 6.94 7.77 6.19 6.16 8.23 74

Base Charges 70,623$     71,143$     71,210$     71,106$   71,262$   71,106$   71,158$   71,153$    71,439$    71,439$     711,639$       
Consumption Charges 52,884$     62,621$     43,524$     40,859$   47,242$   40,300$   50,921$   33,618$    32,409$    55,588$     459,966$       
Reconnecton Charges 1,645$       1,505$       1,575$       1,505$     1,435$     1,575$     875$        2,660$      1,960$      1,715$       16,450$          

 Number of Abatements 13 16 7 20 15 13 7 15 6 112                  

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 

1,161.50$  1,268$       1,814$       2,249$     3,036$     956$        2,893$     1,658$      650$         15,683.00$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

19.9 16.22 15.6 15.7 15 15 15 14 15 141.010

Number of Customers 2660 2680 2677 2673 2679 2673 2675 2671 2682 2682 26,752
New taps 5 3 3 3 4 0 0 0 1 1 20
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$    4,844.65$    4,844.65$  $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 4,844.65$   4,844.65$  4,844.65$    48,446.50$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY23-24

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 22-23  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 23-24 (in million gallons)



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS
Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 398 357 349 397 406 409 332 0 0 0 0 0 2648

Plymouth Police Department 316 287 275 329 340 324 277 2148
Public Works 9 12 13 4 9 13 0 60

EMS Calls in the Town of Plymouth 73 58 61 64 57 72 55 440
Plymouth Fire Department 17 18 26 20 19 24 18

SHERRIFF
FY23-24









 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
   
       DATE:     June 3, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-
client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 



DRAFT 

 

                        
May 6, 2024 

 
  The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting 
on Monday, May 6, 2024, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams 
Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. 
Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. Also, present 
were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. 
Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 

Chair Keyes called the meeting to order. Commissioner Walker gave the 
invocation.  Commissioner Phelps led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:   
 

  Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve tonight’s Agenda.        
Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
  CONSENT AGENDA: 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board 
may take action to approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item 
may be withheld from a general action, to be discussed and voted upon 
separately at the discretion of the Board. 
 

a) Regular Session Minutes: April 1, 2024, and Closed Session Minutes 
for December  4, 2023; January 8, 2024; February 5, 2024, and 
March 4 

b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents 
c) RESO 2024-015 Proclamation for EMS Week  
d) Interlocal Building Inspector Agreement between Washington 

County & Tyrrell County and RESO 2024-016 Approving Interlocal 
Agreement between Washington County & Tyrrell County  

e) RESO-017 Raising Uniform Guidance Thresholds 
f) Auditor Contract 
g) Letter of Support for Mid-Currituck Bridge 
h) Organizational Chart 

 
 
Mr. Potter said Item d) had one typo error.  On page 2, Washington was 
changed to Tyrrell. (The change has been made by the Clerk on the original 
for signature.) 

 
 Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

Commissioner Johnson seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 PUBLIC FORUM:  Mr. Jimmy Jones, Cardinal Lane, told the Board this has been 
talked about since 1909 [what he said]. Still wants the State to take over Cardinal 



DRAFT 

 

Lane. He wants Chair Keyes to call a meeting with some residents. Chair Keyes 
said someone will get back with him.  

 
BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW: Ms. Bennett, Clerk to Board 

swore in the Commissioners as the Board of Equalization and Review.  Ms.Wilkins , Tax  
Administrator stated she has no appeals at this time.   

   
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to recess the Board of E&R to May 20, 

2024, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street. Commissioner 
Phelps seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 PK-12 CHANGE ORDER #6:  Mr. Potter, CM/CA spoke to the Board regarding 
change order #6 for the PK-12 school.  This change order is regarding the low voltage 
panel.   
 
 Commissioner Spruill asked if the school board has signed this change order. Mr. 
Potter said yes.  Commissioner Spruill said he was disappointed that this item was taken 
out of the original quote on the school and that it has taken so long for it to arrive. 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the PK-12 Change Order #6. 
Commissioner Walker seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING: SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR 
WILKINS MEMORIAL GARDENS:    Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board, swore in the 
Commissioners as the Board of Adjustment.  
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to open the quasi-judicial hearing.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mr. Potter went over the procedures for a quasi-judicial hearing. See below. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
  
 Mr. Potter asked were there any conflicts between the members of the Board with 
the applicant.  Commissioner Walker said he is related to the applicant and wishes to 
recuse himself from voting on this matter. 



DRAFT 

 

 Commissioner Spruill stated he was approached by a party of the applicant asking 
if he was aware of this application. Commissioner Spruill said he was and that was the end 
of the conversation. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to recuse Commissioner Walker from 
voting on this item. Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

Ms. Bennett asked if there were there any Witnesses/Parties in attendance. 
 
Mr. Allen Pittman, Planning & Safety Director; Mr. Louis Wilkins, Roper; Mr. James H. 

Wilkins, Roper and Mr. Brandon L. Wilkins, 2720 US HWY 64 W, Plymouth were in 
attendance.  Ms. Bennett swore them in. 
 

The were no comments from the board. Chair Keyes said she knows there are no wells 
within the gravesites. Commissioner Phelps asked would this be used as a family cemetery. L 
Mr. Wilkins said yes, and members would pay by block for the upkeep.  

 
Mr. Pittman asked to enter into evidence an overlay map of the property. 
Commissioner Johnson approved and Commissioner Phelps seconded.  
 
Chair Keyes asked Mr. Wilkins if he had any questions.  He said he did not. 
 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the Special Use Permit for Wilkins 

Memorial Gardens be approved and filed with the Cemetery Commission. Commissioner 
Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to close the public hearing.  Commissioner 

Spruill seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY RECOMMENDED FY25 BUDGET PRESENTATION: 
Mr. Potter read his budget message below. 
 

FY25 BUDGET MESSAGE 

TO:  Washington County Board of Commissioners 
FROM: Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney & Budget Officer 
RE: Budget Officer’s Recommended Budget for July 1st, 2024, to June 30, 2025  

(“FY25”) 
DATE:  May 6, 2024 
 
In accordance with the North Carolina Local Government and Budget Fiscal Control Act, as the 
County Manager and Budget Officer of Washington County, I hereby submit this Budget 
Message to the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County for its review and 
consideration together with the recommended budget for the upcoming fiscal year identifying 
revenue and expenditure estimates, and making line item and departmental recommendations to 
allocate funds based on those estimates, departmental funding requests, and other information 
gathered from a wide variety of internal and external sources.  
 
The overall budget presented seeks to balance and meet the needs of county citizens in a 
manageable and cost-effective manner.  Any increases or decreases in revenues or expenditures 
within the recommended budget are based on researched justifications, and held to a manageable 
level within individual departments to the fullest extent possible.  Any major exceptions to this 



DRAFT 

 

will be highlighted in this message, and in the Recommended Budget Notebook and materials 
presented to you for your review.  
 
Budget Development Process: 
The budget development process began this year with the presentation and adoption of the 
budget calendar in December of 2023 followed by a Budget Planning Workshop held by the 
Board of Commissioners and staff in January of 2024. 
 
A Budget Kickoff message and Budget Request Forms and Instructions were made available to 
all county departments and other partner agencies receiving regular funding from Washington 
County on or about February 7th, 2024.  Budget Request Forms were due to the County Manager 
by March 1st, 2024.  Several departments and agencies were unable to meet this deadline, but 
this did not cause any significant delays in the overall process this year. 
 
As noted in previous budget messages, in my experience as a Budget Officer, the practical ability 
to physically meet and engage in personal physical budget discussions is vitally important to 
developing a more accurate and complete budget for the upcoming fiscal year.  This is 
particularly true in small rural county’s with limited administrative support staff and less 
efficient budget preparation resources compared to larger jurisdictions. 
 
With only a few limited exceptions, both the County Manager and Finance Officer were able to 
meet in person, at least once, with each department head and/or major outside agency 
representative, to review departmental/agency requests, and prepare the proposed budget for the 
upcoming fiscal year.   
 
The information in this message contains major budgetary highlights and comments organized 
and broken down primarily by the applicable funds from which each budget is allocated 
following the same numerical order contained within the county’s chart of accounts and financial 
statements.  Toward the end of this message, additional information is provided related to each 
of the following categories: 

- Capital Improvement Plan (“CIP”) 
- Personnel (Salaries, Benefits, and Modifications) 
- Other Items 
- Conclusion  

 
 

 
1. General Fund Revenues, Allocated Fund Balance, & Expenses:  

 
a. Introduction:  The General Fund (sometimes referred to herein as the (“GF”) is 

the largest and primary operating fund of the county from which the 
overwhelming majority of all governmental operations are funded. 
 

b. GF Revenues:  Revenues of the GF are primarily generated from ad valorem 
property tax collections, sales tax receipts, motor vehicle tax receipts, various 



DRAFT 

 

fees, fines, grants and limited shared revenues received from the State of North 
Carolina.  

 
i. According to the Washington County Tax Department, based on 

information available as of mid-April, the county’s Total Tax Base 
(including real and personal property, public utilities, and motor vehicles) 
for the upcoming fiscal year is projected to be $1,041,300,000 which is 
just slightly larger than the current fiscal year’s tax base of 
$1,040,459,553, but a 9% increase compared to the prior fiscal year’s tax 
base of $956,400,821 due primarily to the addition of a new solar farm.   

However, for procedural reasons the new solar farm failed to file 
for certain tax exemptions on time and incurred a substantially larger than 
anticipated first year tax bill of over $1.3M which was due before the end 
of the prior fiscal year, but went unpaid resulting in the County’s overall 
tax collection rate falling from over 95% to just over 80% for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2023 as reported in our audit.   

Just recently we are pleased to report that this same taxpayer has 
entered into a Tax Repayment Agreement with the Washington County 
Tax Collector and made their first installment payment just before this 
budget message was prepared.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the 
Tax Collector anticipates that the taxpayer will catch up on paying all 
overdue taxes owed by the end of the upcoming fiscal year.   

While we are excited the taxpayer has agreed to begin making 
payments, and hopeful that they will continue doing so until fully caught 
up, due to the unusually large size of the tax debt in this single account, 
until that occurs, there are various aspects of both the tax collection rate 
and certain budgetary line items which will remain skewed.   

For example the revenue figures for prior year tax collections and 
interest will appear grossly overstated in the presented budget when 
compared to historical collections in these same lines.  Additionally the 
amount of fund balance allocated to balance the total revenues against all 
anticipated expenditures in the general fund will appear much smaller than 
recent years due in part to the fact that we are relying on the anticipated 
repayments to be made by the taxpayer to balance the upcoming fiscal 
years budget, but also due in part to an overall reduction in the amount of 
capital outlay expenditures which were higher in recent years during a 
multi-year period of utilizing certain pandemic recovery funds to tackle a 
wide variety of capital improvement projects.  Many of those projects are 
shown as “completed” in the CIP section of the budget presented tonight 
for your reference.  

It should be noted that if the tax payer breaches the repayment 
agreement or fails to make most of the payments anticipated to be 
collected in the upcoming fiscal year, the County will inevitably end up 
having to rely on an additional appropriation of general fund balance to 
cover the difference temporarily.   
 



DRAFT 

 

ii. The Total Tax Base is anticipated to increase only $840,447 consisting as 
follows: 

 
a. $659,553 reduction in the Real & Personal Property portion of the 

tax base due in large part to the same solar farm taxpayer listing 
80% of their assets as tax exempt as permitted by NC law, 
compared to not doing so the prior fiscal year. 
 

b. $500,000 decrease in the Public Utilities portion of the tax base 
most likely due to depreciation. 
 

c. $2,000,000 increase in the Motor Vehicles portion of the tax base.      
 

iii. Tax Rate Projection: The currently assessed Ad Valorem Tax Rate of 
$0.840 cents per $100 of assessed property value is recommended to be 
maintained at the same* rate for the upcoming fiscal year to continue 
adequately funding county operations. 

 
a. *Note the special comments within the School Capital Outlay 

section of this message with respect to the potential impact of 
significant debt service on the future tax rate.  

 
b. Also note that the currently assessed Special Tax rate of $.01 cent 

per $100 of assessed property value for Watershed Improvement 
(as authorized by voter referendum held on May 6, 1972, and 
levied in addition to the general ad valorem tax rate) is 
recommended to be maintained at the same rate for the upcoming 
fiscal year.  

Revenues from this special tax do not support the General 
Fund, but instead are restricted for use exclusively to adequately 
fund and manage watershed drainage systems and projects 
throughout Washington County. 
 

c. As a result of the changes in the overall Total Tax Base, and based 
on the proposed Tax Rate, the projected per penny ad valorem tax 
collection amount is expected to increase by $167 from $99,738 
this current fiscal year, to $99,905 for the coming fiscal year.  This 
should equate to an overall increase of $14,036 in ad valorem tax 
revenues collected next fiscal year compared to the current fiscal 
year. 

 
d. The tax rate projections for the upcoming fiscal year are based on 

collecting an estimated 95.00% of all assessed real and personal 



DRAFT 

 

property values, as well as 100% of all public utilities and motor 
vehicle values.  In accordance with applicable law, these collection 
rates are based on the actual tax collection rates from the prior 
fiscal year, which was 80.15% overall, but would have been 
96.51% but for the nonpayment of one outlying taxpayer account. 

 
iv. Approximately $18.6M is estimated to be the total General Fund revenues 

for all taxes, programs, and other activities for the upcoming fiscal year 
BEFORE the allocation of additional available unassigned fund balance 
from the General Fund which may be needed to balance total revenues 
against the total GF budget. 
 

v. Note that for the upcoming fiscal year, an additional $300k per year is 
expected to be received from Article 46 Local Option Sales Taxes 
following the successful passage of a recent referenda to authorize such 
tax and the Board’s final approval to implement it beginning at the start of 
the upcoming fiscal year. 

 
vi. A line item by line item comparison of the recommended revenues for the 

upcoming fiscal year to the current fiscal year’s budget as of 3/7/2024 
(about 66% of the fiscal year), as well as to the actual revenues received 
last fiscal year is included in the “Revenues” Tab of your Recommended 
Budget Notebooks. 

 
c. Allocated GF Fund Balance & CIP Items: The total GF budget for all county 

operations and debt service requirements totals approximately $19.2M compared 
to the current fiscal year’s amended budget of $18.5M (as of the date of this 
Memo), and is balanced against projected revenues and total projected expenses 
by relying upon an allocation of approximately $0.5M in unassigned fund balance 
compared to the current fiscal year’s much larger allocation of $1.9M.  This 
amount is shown in the “Revenues” Tab of your Recommended Budget Notebook 
as additional revenue for the upcoming fiscal year. 
 

i. Although the amount of GF fund balance currently recommended to be 
allocated is substantially smaller than the amount allocated in the current 
fiscal year, it still represents a considerable portion of the overall available 
unassigned GF fund balance, and should be carefully reviewed prior to 
approval.   

 
a. To assist in this effort, management has summarized a variety of 

larger expenditures and CIP Items which are recommended to be 
funded from the GF fund balance for the upcoming fiscal year.  



DRAFT 

 

This summary can be viewed at the bottom of the last budget sheet 
in the “Revenues” Tab of your Recommended Budget Notebook.   
 

b. Note that many of these items represent a continuation of funding 
for CIP items that were funded in the current fiscal year but have 
not yet been completed, or in some cases initiated, while others 
represent new funding for new CIP items.  You can also refer to 
the “CIP” Tab of your Recommended Budget Notebook where you 
will see the items for which funding is being allocated in the 
upcoming fiscal year highlighted in blue. 

 
c. CIP recommendations for the upcoming year include: 

o $500k  Complete repairs to courthouse 
stormwater/elevator 

o $112k  Replace 2 Sheriff’s Vehicles 
o $60k  Roof/HVAC Replacement Capital Reserves 
o $40k  IT Server Relocation and Switch 

Replacement 
o $38k  Replace 1 DSS Fleet Vehicle 
o $35k  Purchase 2nd Shared Use Fleet Vehicle 
o $20k each Replace Elections Laptops / Jail 

Painting/Flooring  
o $15k  Playground Fencing in Recreation 
o $10k  Annual PARTF Grant Match Contribution 

 
d. GF Expenditures: General Fund expenditures encompass most of the major 

governmental operations of Washington County including: education (except 
capital outlay), public health, human services, law enforcement, firefighting 
services, transfers to EMS (which is technically part of the general fund but is 
accounted for in a separate Fund 37), general debt and most other general 
governmental services.   

 
i. Approximately $17.7M is recommended as the total GF expense amount 

to be allocated for the upcoming fiscal year.  This amount is broken down 
into subtotals by department/category in a relatively short budgetary 
comparison spreadsheet provided under the “Budgetary Comparison” Tab 
of your Recommended Budget Notebook.   

The proposed budget for each department/category is further 
itemized in separate budget spreadsheets that can be found at the front of 
each separate TAB of your Recommended Budget Notebook 
corresponding to the applicable department, agency, or category.  There is 
a Table of Contents provided for your reference and convenience to find 
individual departments or funds. 



DRAFT 

 

 
e. Special General Fund Notes for the Upcoming Fiscal Year: 

 
i. Separation of certain capital reserves for future capital expenditure:  Over 

the past few years the Board has approved an annually recurring allocation 
of $40k and $20k which has been rolled forward from each year to the 
next to accumulate and build a growing reserve for eventually guaranteed 
future roof repairs/replacement and HVAC repairs/replacement.   

Management has determined it would be a better practice to 
transfer these funds completely out of the general fund to permit them to 
accumulate as part of another fund’s restricted/assigned fund balance in 
the same manner which $10k per year has been allocated for many years 
in the general fund and transferred to the Projects and Grants Fund (Fund 
58) to accumulate for an eventual PARTF recreation grant match.   

After considering the pros and cons of creating yet another 
separate fund just to hold this relatively small for now amount of capital 
reserve funds, for the upcoming fiscal year and continuing thereafter until 
circumstances warrant a different solution, management recommends the 
annual amount traditionally allocated for roof/hvac capital reserves be 
transferred to the existing (Fund 58).   

A budget amendment will be brought to the Board prior to the end 
of the current fiscal year to authorize the transfer of the current 
accumulated balance of reserve funds from the general fund to Fund 58 to 
which next year’s annual allocation will be added. 
 

ii. Fire Protection:  To support the continued provision of fire protection 
services throughout the county, I recommend an allocation of $399,620 
which is calculated at exactly $.04 collected cents per $100 of assessed 
property value.  This represents an increase of $668 over the current fiscal 
year.  

 
iii. Transfers Out of the General Fund:  Several larger than usual transfers 

out of the General Fund are recommended for the upcoming fiscal year 
including the following: 

 
a. $700,000 to Fund 21 to cover negative cash flow anticipated in 

that fund as a result of the County making its first $1.8M debt 
service payment for the loan received in the prior fiscal year to 
assist with constructing the new consolidated PK12 school. 

b. $450,000 to Fund 40 to continue setting aside adequate reserves 
to fund the liabilities of the Washington County Hospital 
Pension Plan. 

c. $399,620 to be transferred to the EMS Fund representing a 
continuation of four cents anticipated revenue to help operate 
the EMS system. 



DRAFT 

 

d. $99,905 to the Airport Fund representing a continuation of one 
cents anticipated revenue to help operate the Airport. 

e. $50,000 to the Sanitation Fund to help offset rising scrap tire 
costs. 

f. $40,000 to the Tax Revaluation Fund. 
g. $70,000 to the Special Projects & Grants Fund (Fund 58) to 

make a new annual contribution of $60,000 to be held in Fund 
58 for future roof/hvac capital reserve purposes, and to continue 
making an annual $10k contribution toward an eventual PARTF 
grant local match requirement.  For the upcoming fiscal year the 
total accumulated funds for this purpose will reach $69,226. 

 
iv. Contingency Recommendation: $50,000 is requested for contingency 

purposes to permit the Budget Officer to more efficiently deal with 
unexpected expenses or emergencies during the upcoming year, and to 
help prevent delayed services or operational interference that may 
otherwise result without the availability of such funds.  All transfers 
from contingency are transparently reported to the Board per applicable 
policy at each Board meeting after any such transfers. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
2. Enterprise Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and Operations: Several major county 

services are operated from self-sustaining enterprise funds (also known as proprietary 
funds).  These include the landfill/sanitation fund (also known as the solid waste fund), 
the water fund, and the emergency medical services fund (although technically this last 
fund which relies heavily on annual transfers from the general fund is providing 
governmental rather than proprietary services, and from an auditing standpoint is 
considered and counted as part of the total governmental services funded through the 
general fund). 

 
a. Solid Waste Enterprise Fund (33) Approximately $1.68M is allocated for total 

Solid Waste Fund revenues and expenditures for the upcoming fiscal year 
compared to the current fiscal year budget of $1.66M.  The nominal difference is 
attributable to a $50k allocation for replacement of the primary dump truck offset 
by higher revenues.   
 

i. Solid Waste revenues are derived from household solid waste user fees, 
town solid waste user fees, regional commercial landfill disposal fees, 
construction contractors’ disposal fees, penalties and interest, white goods 
and scrap tire disposal fees.  The costs to comply with the largely 
unfunded scrap tire mandates established by law appear to have finally 
stabilized this year after drastically increasing in FY23.  However they 
continue to run at more than double the historical costs prior to FY23.  
The County will continue to seek legislative support and is actively 
lobbying to modify the current method of distributing scrap tire tax 
revenues to help alleviate these increases in price driven largely by a lack 
of competition in the scrap tire recycling market.  
 

ii. Revenues are based upon a proposed $15 increase in the solid waste user 
fee (SWUF) from $335 per household this fiscal year to $350 per 
household next fiscal year equal to an approximately 4% increase.   

 
• An equivalent $2 increase in the municipal availability fee from 

$44 to $46 is also recommended.  This fee is charged to the Town 
of Plymouth (which does not pay a SWUF) to provide local C & D 
Landfill access to town account owners on the same basis as 
county account owners. 

 
iii. The SWUF is used to adequately fund the solid waste proprietary 

enterprise fund.  It covers costs associated with both curbside pickup 
services (which are anticipated to remain at the same rate this year but 
dramatically increase in the following years thereafter), and regional 
landfill tipping fees which are anticipated to increase in costs by 3.09% 
this year compared to 6.41% last fiscal year.  In addition it is used to help 



DRAFT 

 

fund the general availability and operation of the local County C&D 
Landfill.   

 
iv. Historically the SWUF was last raised a year ago from $300 to $335, and 

before that three years ago from $275 to $300 per household.  It had not 
been raised for at least 4 years before that.  Recent fiscal year’s budget 
messages warn that an increase in this fee was anticipated to be needed in 
the upcoming fiscal year’s budgets even before the unprecedented rise in 
scrap tire compliance costs.  To help alleviate the pressure caused by those 
costs, $50,000 was recommended to be transferred from the GF to the 
solid waste fund in the current fiscal year as a one time supplement.  That 
recommendation is repeated for the upcoming fiscal year. 

 
v. Due to its ongoing distressed condition, for the upcoming fiscal year, no 

transfers out of this fund for cost allocations to the GF are recommended. 
 

vi. The total amount of solid waste that can be tipped each year without 
charge in the C & D Landfill remains set at the current rate of 2,000 
pounds of waste per account.  Management recommends considering a 
further weight reduction once a viable option has been established to 
accept credit card payments by customers at the landfill which has been 
challenged by internet connectivity issues.  

 
vii. Careful attention should be paid to the ongoing financial performance of 

this fund, and efforts should be made to increase operational efficiencies 
and revenues wherever practically possible in order to try to sustain its 
operations without incurring recurring losses year after year. 

 
viii. CIP Project recommendations include: 

- $50,000 to replace an old 1990 dump truck with over 260k miles 
 

b. Waterworks Enterprise Fund (35): Approximately $1.8M in total Waterworks 
Enterprise Fund revenues and expenses are projected for the upcoming fiscal year 
compared to the current fiscal year budget of approximately $2.1M.   

Note that three large capital projects originally included in the budget for 
Fund 35 this fiscal year were transferred into the newly established Water Capital 
Projects Fund (Fund 36) mid-fiscal year.   
 

i. The projected operational revenues for this fund are based on a total of 
approximately 2,667 customers with an average usage of 3,600 gallons per 
month.  Total combined revenues for water base and consumption 
charges are projected to increase by approximately $20,000 from 
$1.43M this fiscal year to $1.45M next fiscal year. 
 

ii. Historically revenues from water sales have not kept pace with 
expenditures and long term utility system capital improvement needs, 
although net position of this fund has improved substantially over the last 



DRAFT 

 

few years.  The State of North Carolina also recently created a Vulnerable 
Utility Reserve program which essentially scores every utility system in 
the state on a variety of metrics, and places lower scoring systems into a 
mandatory remedial training and action program commonly referred to as 
“VUR”.   

Washington County, along with all three municipal systems, and 
most other smaller rural jurisdictions has been placed in the VUR.  As part 
of this process, the County anticipates undertaking a more formal rate 
review study in the next year or two.   

iii. However, for the upcoming fiscal year, the Utilities Department 
recommends an immediate increase of $2 per 1,000 gallons of water 
consumed over the base rate to help offset rising inflationary pressure on 
expenses, particularly for chemical costs related to treating the county 
water supply.  No change in the base rate is presently recommended.   

Most residents currently pay $26 per month for the first 2,000 
gallons of water consumed and $13 for each 1,000 gallons thereafter.  
With the proposed increase, the monthly base rate would remain at 
unchanged and the consumption rate will increase to $15.   

Historically, other than a $2 raise to the base rate this current fiscal 
year, there has not been a rate increase since FY16, when rates were raised 
in response to a letter of concern received from the LGC regarding the 
sustainability of the fund balance in this proprietary water fund.   

 
iv. Water Fund Cost Allocations to the General Fund: Cost Allocations are 

justifiable expenses of one fund made for the benefit of another fund 
which are “allocated” to that fund within a formal Cost Allocation Plan. 

In FY17 the cost allocations paid from the water system to the 
general fund were substantially reduced after internal restructuring of 
some water department staff and due to the concerns about fund balance 
which appear to have stabilized.   

In FY18 and FY19 the cost allocations were increased again 
slightly based on the most recent cost allocation report available.   

Since FY18, and continuing through the current fiscal year, a 
substantially lower cost allocation has been allocated from the Water Fund 
to the general fund based on the most recent cost allocation reports which 
typically run one year in arrears for each fiscal year, and are carefully 
tracked by management to monitor and maintain the separate integrity of 
the enterprise fund from the general fund, and to ensure that transfers 
between such funds are only made pursuant to justifiable actual cost 
allocation reports. 

For next fiscal year a $110k cost allocation is recommended. 
 

v. CIP Allocation recommendations include: 
- $60,000 to replace a 2016 pathfinder with 100k miles with a more 

appropriate work body pickup. 
- $197,000 to continue replacing 20% of the county meters annually. 



DRAFT 

 

- $223,107 to replace the SCADA system which has already been 
procured. 

 
c. Waterworks Capital Projects Fund (36):  

This fund was created during the current fiscal year partially to comply with 
NC DEQ mandates related to VUR Grant funded projects.  The three projects 
presently budgeted in this fund include a $5,472,000 grant to undertake the long-
discussed expansion of the main waterlines from Roper to Pea Ridge, a $970,000 
grant to repair and improve interconnections between the county system and 
municipal system with the Town of Roper, and a $237k asset inventory 
assessment.   

 
d. Washington-Tyrrell Emergency Medical Services (EMS) FUND (37):  

Despite constant challenges, Washington County EMS doing business as 
Washington-Tyrrell EMS continues to successfully fulfill its emergency 
medical services mission to the county’s citizens.  Washington County operates 
emergent and non-emergent (transport) services to the county’s residents.  
Washington County EMS also operates emergency services through a contract 
with Tyrrell County for their citizens.   

 
i. The primary sources of revenues for emergent and non-emergent 

services are Medicare, Medicaid, private insurance and private pay 
patients as well as additional funds from Tyrrell County for operating 
its EMS program.  These revenue sources do not provide enough 
revenue to fully cover all county EMS operational expenses.  For that 
reason, the county has historically been compelled during previous 
fiscal years, as well as the current fiscal year, to make a general fund 
transfer to the EMS Fund to compensate for expenses not reimbursed by 
the sources cited above, as well as to maintain a fiscally responsible 
fund balance in this sometimes-volatile fund caused by unpredictable 
fluctuations in calls for service which makes accurate predictions of 
revenue streams difficult to forecast.  The fund balance is also often 
impacted periodically from high capital outlay costs associated with 
replacing expensive medical ambulances and equipment.   
 

ii. Considerable review and evaluation of current EMS operations have 
been performed over the past decade in an effort to lower expenditures 
and lessen reliance on county general funds.  After implementing a 
fluctuating workweek schedule for staff to reduce overtime costs, 
changing billing companies to improve collection rates, and franchising 
point to point non-emergent medical transport, the EMS system has 
undergone a noticeable improvement but still requires a regular transfer 
of general fund revenues, although that transfer is now much more 
predictable and manageable than in previous years due primarily to 
proactive fund balance management policies and strong departmental 
administration in recent years.  

 



DRAFT 

 

iii. In FY19 after much discussion and analysis, it was determined that 
while the fluctuating work week assisted in temporarily controlling the 
unpredictable overtime expenses associated with previous shift 
schedules, that model was no longer considered a viable long-term 
option due to low recruitment, morale, and high turn-over as well as 
increased competition from surrounding jurisdictions that do not utilize 
that unpopular model.   

 
iv. While more expensive overall, the estimated additional expenses 

associated with eliminating the fluctuating workweek continue to prove 
largely accurate based on performance data.  Similar estimates have 
been used for proposing to continue this staffing model for the 
upcoming fiscal year but will need to continue to be monitored closely 
in light of the inclusion of the EMS Department in the relatively 
recently adopted progressive pay plan system.  

 
v. Approximately $2.4M in total EMS and Transport revenues and 

expenditures are projected for the upcoming fiscal year which is 
approximately the same as the current fiscal year.  Of the total $2.4M in 
projected revenues, approximately $1.9M is anticipated to be received 
from outside revenue sources, while $399,620 is anticipated to be 
transferred to EMS from the General Fund representing 4 cents ($0.04 
cents) of projected collected ad valorem tax revenues.  An additional 
appropriated fund balance from the EMS Fund of $174,748 is 
recommended primarily to balance the fund against projected expenses 
and to help fund several CIP items including: $25,000 to replace an 11 
year old stretcher.  Although CIP Allocations in this fund are much 
lower this year than prior years, it should be noted that some CIP 
purchases were made in advance during the current fiscal year, and a 
number of larger CIP items are anticipated in future years to begin 
replacing aging ambulances. 

 
3. Other Miscellaneous Fund Budgets: 

 
a. Washington County Schools Current Expenses (GF) and Capital Outlay ( 

Fund 21):  Educational funding makes up one of the largest recurring expenses 
for the County and is typically divided into two primary categories being an 
annual allocation of operational funding for current expenses from the County’s 
general fund  and an annual allocation of capital funding for capital expenses 
from Fund 21 using restricted sales tax revenues which are required by law to be 
spent for school capital purposes.  In recent years the current expense 
appropriation has been approximately $1.7M, and the County’s capital funding 
has been approximately $400k. 

 
i. After a considerable amount of planning and discussion by both the Board 

of Commissioners and Board of Education regarding the need to replace 



DRAFT 

 

certain public school facilities, and after jointly applying for and receiving 
an initial $40M grant for that purpose from the NC Needs Based Public 
School Capital Fund (NBPSCF) which subsequently increased in amount 
to a $50M grant, both Boards jointly entered into a written Funding 
Agreement in August, 2022 related to the prospective terms of financing 
and facilitating the construction of a new PK-12 consolidated school 
building using new debt service and a lease back repayment structure.  
 

ii. Considerable staff time and resources have been, and will continue next 
fiscal year to be devoted to monitoring and managing the PK-12 project 
which is the largest capital project undertaken by Washington County in 
living memory.  The revenues and expenditures related to this project are 
accounted for in Fund 21.   
 

iii. As part of the PK-12 Funding Agreement, the County undertook a 
substantial amount of new local debt service to combine loan funding with 
the grant funding in order to complete the project.  In the current fiscal 
year the County was required to make a partial interest only payment of 
approximately $431k toward that debt service.  Beginning next fiscal year, 
full annual debt service payments will begin at approximately $1.8M 
annually by the County. 
 

iv. Under the PK-12 Funding Agreement, the parties also agreed the County 
would continue in the short term to fund the School System at the same 
level for current expense funding, but would reduce the capital outlay 
funding allocations to $100k per year to enable the County to use the 
remainder to help pay the debt service payments.  The School System also 
agreed to begin paying the County $400,000 per year as rent under a lease 
to be put into place between the parties at the completion of the school.  
Those funds would likewise be used by the County to pay down the new 
annual debt service. 
 

v. Pursuant to the Funding Agreement, management recommends that 
$1,705,000 continue to be allocated next fiscal year to the School 
System from the general fund for current expenses/operations, and 
that $100,000 be allocated to the School System next fiscal year from 
Fund 21 for capital outlay purposes.  To cover the negative cashflow 
created within Fund 21 as a direct result of the large debt service 
obligations beginning next fiscal year, management also recommends 
$700,000 be transferred from the general fund to Fund 21 which 
management foresees the need to make into an annually recurring transfer 
going forward in order to keep Fund 21 balanced. 



DRAFT 

 

 
vi. As noted in last year’s budget message, unless additional funds are 

secured to use toward the new substantial debt service obligation, even 
with the anticipated use of increased existing restricted sales tax revenues 
and annual lease payments from the School System, the ongoing negative 
cash flow impacts will have a dramatic impact not just on Fund 21 for the 
foreseeable future, but also on the overall ability of Washington County to 
maintain financial stability in its own general fund due to the likely need 
to begin covering the negative cash flow on a long term basis.   

 
vii. At this time last year, management discussed with the Board of 

Commissioners its recommendation that a potential tax increase of around 
four (0.04) cents would most likely be required to manage these new debt 
service obligations unless additional revenue sources were secured.  
Management also advocated for implementation of this tax as early as the 
current fiscal year which was not approved to mitigate against the 
potential risks associated with the growing debt service obligations.   

After much discussion the Board elected not to raise taxes this 
current fiscal year for this purpose, and decided instead to take a wait and 
see approach in terms of whether additional funding might be found to 
avoid the need for such an tax increase.  The County did in fact secure 
some additional revenues this year when its citizens voted to approve a 
referendum to authorize a new ¼ cent local option Article 46 sales tax 
which goes into effect July 1, 2024 and is anticipated to bring an 
additional $300k annually to the County’s general fund.  This new revenue 
stream helps to significantly lessen, but does not completely solve the 
longer term cash flow issues which may eventually require the county to 
consider a tax rate increase anyways to maintain its fiscal stability in the 
years to come, particularly if the County’s fund balance which is fairly 
healthy at the moment declines suddenly or over time due to unforeseen 
events.   

 
viii. Based on management’s understanding of the Board’s current positions on 

a tax increase in the upcoming fiscal year, and in light of the fact that the 
citizens voluntarily voted to approve an additional sales tax beginning next 
fiscal year, along with the fact that the current tax base and unassigned 
general fund balance appear healthy enough to withstand at least one or 
two years of additional transfers to Fund 21 to temporarily resolve the 
negative cash flow situation soon to arise there, for the upcoming fiscal 
year, management recommends extending the wait and see approach 
adopted by the Board this current fiscal year and does not 
recommend raising taxes this coming fiscal year.   
 



DRAFT 

 

ix. It is possible that additional efforts to secure addition funding bear fruit 
and reduce the need or eventual size of a tax increase deemed necessary at 
a later date to assist in managing the PK12 debt service.  Obviously Fund 
21 and its impact on the general fund over both the short and long term 
should be watched with extreme care by management and the Board to 
proactively prevent an otherwise avoidable financial crisis from 
potentially arising. 

 
b. Drainage Fund (30): $179,650 in total revenues and expenses are projected for 

this fund which is used to account for special drainage tax revenues and to 
maintain the various drainage projects and expenses throughout the county.   
 

i. The currently assessed Special Tax rate of one ($.01) cent per $100 of 
assessed property value for Watershed Improvement (as authorized by 
voter referendum held on May 6, 1972, and levied in addition to the 
general ad valorem tax rate) is recommended to be maintained at the same 
rate for the upcoming fiscal year.  Revenue from this special tax is 
restricted to use within this fund for drainage and watershed improvement 
purposes. 

 
ii. This fund is also used to account for revenues and expenses of the Eddie 

Smith Special Assessment District which restarted active assessments this 
current fiscal year and is expected to continue doing so in the upcoming 
fiscal year.  These assessments have been included in the total 
recommended figures for this fund. 

 
iii. A new full time administrative assistant dedicated to drainage and soil and 

water operations is recommended as part of the proposed budget for next 
fiscal year to be funded from the revenues generated in this fund. 

 
c. Plymouth Municipal Airport Grants (38) and Operations (39):  Operational 

revenues and expenditures are estimated in the proposed budget at approximately 
$234k compared to the currently budgeted $265 for the current fiscal year.  
Revenues are generated from airplane fuel sales and airplane hangar rentals.  The 
decrease in revenues next fiscal year is due to slower than anticipated fuel sales.  
The recommendation also includes a continuation of the historical transfer of one 
collected penny or $99,905 from the general fund ad valorem tax revenues to the 
Airport to sustain its operations, along with an allocated fund balance of $42,706 
for the upcoming fiscal year.   
 
Washington County continues to receive $150,000 annually in NPE Grant Funds 
and in more recent years the NC DOT DOA has waived the 10% County Match 
required to utilize NPE grant funding on certain safety sensitive projects.   



DRAFT 

 

 
There is a total of approximately $2.9M recommended for eligible grant revenues 
and expenditures for the upcoming fiscal year which include an airfield lighting 
replacement project estimated at $2.2M with the remainder being NPE funding to 
be utilized primarily toward engineering services related to several upcoming 
projects including the light improvements project, a runway obstruction clearing 
project, and an AWOS system. 
 

d. Washington County Hospital Pension Fund (40):  For the upcoming fiscal year 
management recommends allocating $450,000 in total revenues and expenditures 
for this fund, to be funded from a one-time general fund transfer.  An allocation of 
$50,000 remains to begin addressing long term legal needs of this plan, and to 
research ways to offer and process early beneficiary buy out options. 
 

e. Opioid Settlement Fund (50):  For informational purposes, this fund was 
established to account for the special revenues received in connection with 
Washington County’s participation in a wide variety of opioid epidemic related 
litigation over the past several years.  For the upcoming fiscal year, management 
recommends allocating $62,790 in total revenues and expenditures for this fund. 
 

f. DSS Trust & FC Deposits Fund (51): This relatively recently created, and 
externally mandated fund was required to comply with GASB and LGC directives 
and serves as a passthrough for funds held in trust by DSS.  For the upcoming 
fiscal year management recommends allocating $210,000 in total revenues and 
expenditures.  
 

g. ARPA Fund (55): No allocations have been recommended for this fund in the 
upcoming fiscal year as management anticipates expending all funds by the end of 
the current fiscal year and does not anticipate receiving additional funding at this 
time. 

 
h. Special Projects & Grants Fund (58):  This fund is used to separate and account 

for special projects and grants.  For the upcoming fiscal year, management 
recommends allocating approximately $4.3M in total revenues and expenditures.  
These include: 

i. $4,096,500 to construct the new EMTOC facility utilizing the remainder 
of $3.25M received in specially designated legislative appropriations 
received last fiscal year for such purpose together with $900k in local 
match & a 2k grant. 

ii. $69,226 for a future PARTF local match funded with an additional 
$10,000 transfer to this fund from the general fund. 

iii. $100k in potential spending on an Economic Development Motorsports 
Grant. 



DRAFT 

 

iv. $60k in additional capital reserves for roof/hvac replacements transferred 
from the general fund. 

 
i. TTA Fund (63):  COVID-19 did not impact overall occupancy tax revenues as 

originally anticipated.  Due to a relatively small fund balance historically, and the 
inconsistency of occupancy driven revenues, this fund balance and annual 
operations should also be carefully monitored to ensure that a negative fund 
balance is not inadvertently created particularly during periods of economic 
decline.   
 
Beginning in FY18 the TTA’s largest single activity, the NC Black Bear Festival, 
branched out to form its own non-profit corporation with financial autonomy 
which has considerably reduced the amount of administrative work associated 
with that event by county staff and has also made TTA budgeting overall much 
more stable and predictable. 
 
Total revenues and expenditures in this fund for the upcoming fiscal year are 
projected to be approximately $237k compared to the current fiscal year budget of 
approximately $278k.  This decrease is primarily due to reduced revenues and a 
portion of a proposed $120,000 marketing campaign requested by the TTA which 
relies heavily upon an allocation of the TTA’s fund balance being completed in 
the current fiscal year. 
 

j. E911 Fund (69):  This fund is used to account for special revenues received from 
the State of North Carolina for E911 related expenses.  Total revenues and 
expenditures in this fund for the upcoming fiscal year are projected to be 
$118,952 or the same as this current year.  The overall fund balance and annual 
performance of this fund will need to be monitored and managed closely in the 
coming years as the program and associated reimbursement rules and amounts 
constantly change leaving uncertainty about reliable revenue streams and 
expensive technology mandates. 

 
k. Revaluation Fund (70): For the upcoming fiscal year a continuation of the 

annual contribution of $40,000 into this fund to set aside for revaluation of the 
assessed tax base which is required to be conducted at least every eight years is 
recommended.  The County’s next revaluation year is anticipated to be 2029. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
4. Capital Outlay & Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Items:   

a. The county has been making steady progress toward developing and more 
consistently utilizing a formal Capital Improvement Plan or “CIP” process over 
the last several years.  In FY23 the CIP was revised and published online under 
the Finance Office’s webpage based on a biennial review cycle.  The next 
official biennial update is anticipated to occur in the fall of the upcoming fiscal 
year.   The intent in using a biennial cycle is to reduce the large amounts of 
staff time and resources required of staff and management to comprehensively 
review and update the entire CIP itself which in many senses is a living 
document such as the budget which undergoes constant revisions based on 
changing circumstances and information as they become known and available.  
By conducting a biennial comprehensive review process, management hopes 
that the full CIP process can be conducted every other year in the fall ahead of 
the next fiscal year’s budget cycle with minor revisions made as otherwise 
required to provide key updates.   
 

b. To assist in your review of these items, staff has included a simplified and 
updated itemized list of all current CIP items along with their current status  
in “Tab 48” of your Recommended Budget Notebooks.  Items that are 
highlighted in blue denote that management has included and is recommending 
funding to be allocated to these items as part of the budget presented for the 
upcoming fiscal year.  
 

c. In addition to the specific CIP items summarized in this message, and for ease 
of reference, many of the recommended CIP Items to be funded in the 
upcoming fiscal year have also been inserted into the total recommended 
budget amounts for each appropriate department budget sheet or fund budget 
sheet, and are generally highlighted in blue on those sheets in your 
Recommended Budget Notebooks. 

 
5. Personnel:  

 
a. Insurance & Benefits:  

 
i. Health insurance rates rose sharply and unexpectedly in the prior fiscal 

year.  As usual, the county has not been informed yet of any pending 
increases in the next fiscal year, but an additional 5% increase is 
included in the recommended Group Health Ins. rates for all employees 
as a placeholder next fiscal year.  Also note that we anticipate all health 
insurance coverage converting to Aetna from Blue Cross Blue Shield in 
the upcoming fiscal year due to the State Health Plan making that 
decision the current fiscal year. 
 

ii. The County switched from UNUM insurance to Blue Cross Blue Shield 
this current fiscal year for all dental, eye, and life insurance benefits to 



DRAFT 

 

save money for both employees and the County.  Coverage for these 
services is expected to continue being provided by this provider. 

 
iii. The County also switched to a new Employee Assistance Program 

provided by New Directions during the current fiscal year which is 
anticipated to continue for next fiscal year. 

b. Progressive Years of Relevant Service (YORE) Based Pay Plan Background:  
During FY21, Washington County adopted and implemented a new 
compensation system based on each employee’s years of relevant experience in 
each position.  This plan was specifically designed to address serious issues 
that arose in previous years related to staff morale and recruiting and retaining 
qualified applicants to provide quality public services to county citizens.   

 
i. The plan results in an ongoing number of salary adjustments 

countywide from year to year depending upon each employee’s 
time/years of relevant experience which is typically measured each 
November, and any resulting increases in compensation typically 
occurring with the start of the following December payroll period, and 
the actual increase in pay reflected with the following January payroll.   
 

ii. All such adjustments have been factored into the proposed budget based 
on the terms of the plan.   
 

iii. Ongoing review and adjustment of the plan is anticipated as several 
positions remain in need of further, and as the overall plan’s impact on 
actual county recruitment and retention, as well as related financial 
costs, continues to develop and become clearer with time. 

 
iv. Staff currently estimates the difference from last fiscal year to this fiscal 

year in terms of YORE Pay Plan impacts is approximately $84k.   
 

c. COLA Recommendation: After careful consideration and evaluation of our 
overall financial integrity, and discussions with surrounding counties about 
their potential cost of living adjustment (COLA) intentions for employee 
salaries next fiscal year, along with a comprehensive update and review of our 
last comparative salary study which focuses on starting pay rates for 
comparable positions to ours across 11 comparable counties taking into account 
which counties work 37.5 vs 40 hour workweeks, I recommend a 2.5% COLA 
for all county employees as part of the overall recommended budget in order to 
keep our starting salaries from falling further behind other surrounding 
counties, and to continue addressing recent inflation experienced over the last 
few years which is no longer increasing as sharply, but certainly continues to 
rise faster than our recent COLAs and YORE progression values put together 
as illustrated in the graphs included in the “Personnel” Tabs of your 
Recommended Budget Notebooks.   

 



DRAFT 

 

i. This recommendation is in line with similarly sized governments in our 
region according to a recently published survey by the NCACC which 
is available on their website and will be provided under the “Personnel” 
Tab of your Recommended Budget Notebooks for your review.  
 

ii. The current projected cost of this recommendation is not anticipated to 
exceed $230,000 based on estimates using the combined salaries 
projected for next year which take into consideration pre-planned step 
progressions under the recently adopted progressive pay plan.  This 
figure has been reflected in the General Fund budget using a 
placeholder shown under the “Central Services” Tab of your 
Recommended Budget Notebooks.   
 

iii. Under the current pay plan, each step of progression already equates to 
an approximate 2.5% increase, meaning that combined with the 
proposed 2.5% COLA, for those employees scheduled to progress next 
fiscal year, they would realize a net increase in pay of 5%, and for those 
who do not, they could anticipate realizing this same increase at the 
time of their next progression typically in the following year under the 
current plan guidelines.  
 

a. For the upcoming fiscal year, management recommends 
calculating the potential costs of permitting more senior 
employees to progress each year (rather than every other year) 
but at half the current step progression value.  If the potential 
costs of this method are not prohibitive, management would 
bring a recommendation to the Board in FY25 to expand the 
applicable steps by adding half values, and then permit all 
employees to receive at least some annual progression even if it 
is at half the current step value.  It is believed this would 
improve morale among more senior staff without costing the 
County more than the limited time value of providing an earlier 
half step in lieu of a later full step. 

 
d. Other Personnel Reclassification or Additional Position Recommendations:  

The following additional adjustments to current classifications within the pay 
plan are also recommended and have been incorporated into the projected 
salaries of the proposed budget unless otherwise indicated: 

 
i. Reclassification of the current Maintenance Worker II position to a 

Maintenance Worker I position (without any loss of pay) to better 
reflect the actual duties assigned to and fulfilled by all three 
maintenance workers in this Department. 
 

ii. 1 new FT position in DSS as an IMCW III for Adult Medicaid (Refer to 
written justification provided in DSS request materials) and the freezing 
of the DSS IT position which DSS has been unable to fill due to the 
salary demands of IT professionals and has chosen to utilize outside 



DRAFT 

 

contracted services to fill the duties of this position for the next fiscal 
year and foreseeable future. 
 

iii. 1 new FT position in Drainage as an Administrative Assistant to help 
with drainage and soil and water related services throughout the 
County. 
 

iv. Reclassification of 2 EMT Basic positions into EMT Intermediate 
positions to create more flexibility within the overall staffing and 
scheduling of the EMS system.  This would result in a total of 5 EMT-I 
positions if approved. 

 
 

e. Other Grade Modifications:  After carefully reviewing the comprehensively 
updated comparative salary study, even after accounting for the effect of the 
increases to be realized in each position based on potential approval of the 
recommended COLA, the following additional modifications to current 
position grade assignments within the pay plan are also recommended in order 
to keep these specific positions competitively compensated in line with our 
other comparable counties.  Placeholders to fund the anticipated costs of these 
modifications have been included within the recommended budget within each 
of the respective funds indicated in the following table: 

Position Current 
Grade 

New 
Grade 

Number 
of 
Positions 

Total Est. 
Cost 
(w/ancillary) 

Office Assistant/Floater 8 10 0 0 
Housekeeper 8 10 3 (1 in 

DSS) 
$1k - $2k 

Maintenance Worker I 10 11 3 (w/ 
reclass) 

$3k 

Senior Center Nutrition 
Prog. Mgr 

10 11 1 $1k 

Utility Billing/AR Clerk 11 13 2 $6k 
Accounting Tech 12 13 1 $1k 
Property Tax Clerk 12 13 2 $1.5k 
Waterworks Tech I 12 13 4 $3.5k 
Admin Asst. 13 14 2 $2k 
Water Plant Operator 14 16 0 0 
Recreation Director 17 19 1 $3.3k 
Soil & Water Supervisor 17 18 1 $1.1k 
Acct/HR Specialist 18 19 1 $1.4k 
Clerk to Board/AdminAsst 20 21 1 $1.7k 
Elections Director 20 22 1 $3.2k 
Water Treatment Plant 
Supervisor 

25 26 1 $1.5k 



DRAFT 

 

Deputy Finance 
Officer/Financial Analyst 

26 28 1 $3.2k 

Tax Administrator 32 34 1 $4.1k 
Total General Fund: $28.5k 

Total Water Fund: $11k 
 

EMT Basic 11 15 7 $30k 
EMT Intermediate 13 17 5 (w 3 

reclass) 
$16.5k 

EMT Paramedic 19 22 9 $38k 
Total EMS: $84.5k 

 
 

f. Additional Part Time Hours:  The following departments have been allocated 
additional part time assistance in the proposed budget: 

a. Finance (refer to written justification in Finance request 
materials)  

b. Elections 
c. Animal Control (to permit the use of 2 PT employees throughout 

the year to cover shelter maintenance needs weekly) 
d. Recreation 

g. Except as stated above, no position reclassifications or previously unapproved 
modifications to individual full-time employee salaries, nor any new fully 
funded full-time employee positions, are included in the proposed budget. 

 
i. Management notes the need to continue to update and review its 

comprehensive pay study last conducted about four years ago and 
recently updated to account for changes in market conditions and to 
prepare for making better long-term staffing decisions in what is certain 
to be a challenging future for personnel recruitment and retention.   
 

ii. Management recommends further analysis in the upcoming fiscal year 
of the Telecommunications and DSS department salaries to insure 
competitive/comparable salaries are maintained in these departments.. 

 
6. Summary:  This recommended budget attempts to manage expenses and utilize revenues 

in order to meet all current mandated funding requirements and ongoing needs.  The NC 
General Assembly may pass along other costs or change revenues that may alter the 
budget once it’s adopted.  The County will need to monitor and evaluate the effects of 
any legislative changes on the budget during the fiscal year. 
 
It should serve as some comfort that over the past few years, Washington County has 
done an admirable job of building its available unassigned General Fund Fund Balance 
(while also building fund balances to responsibly address other debts and liabilities owed 



DRAFT 

 

by the County) to an amount more in line with Management’s recommendations, and 
which as of the prior year audit, appears to provide us with a solid footing on which to 
think about how to best meet the challenges ahead of us.   
 
The continued use of a formal proactive CIP process, along with maintaining a healthy 
fund balance will better equip us to continue meeting and overcoming our future fiscal 
challenges in the years to come.  For the short term, in the coming fiscal year, some of 
those major challenges will include without limitation: 

- Completing construction of the PK-12 School & beginning its lease & debt 
payments. 

- Construction of a $4M EMTOC building. 
- Monitoring the ongoing collection of over $1.7M from a single delinquent 

taxpayer 
- Absorbing unfunded mandate increases such as the scrap tire program 

overages. 
- Stabilizing the landfill net position. 
- Continuing to manage increasing inflation and unprecedented staff 

shortages/competition. 

A public hearing regarding this recommended budget is scheduled for 6PM on May 
20th, 2024 in the Washington County Board of Commissioners Room at 116 Washington 
St. Plymouth, NC 27962.   
 
Please contact the Clerk to the Board at the information in the letterhead of this Budget 
Message for more information about how to attend or be heard at this hearing.   
 
Final adoption of the budget for the upcoming fiscal year is anticipated to occur 
sometime during the month of June this year, and could occur as early as the same night 
of the public hearing. 
 
If the Board desires to hold any additional special meetings to discuss any questions or 
concerns it may have related to the recommended budget, staff requests that those 
meetings be scheduled prior to the upcoming public hearing to the greatest extent 
possible in order to keep the overall timetable on track for budget adoption by early June 
of this year. 
 
I would like to take time to thank the county staff who collectively devoted countless 
hundreds of hours of time this year to assist the Finance Officer and myself in preparing 
the budget for next fiscal year.  We are truly appreciative of their efforts and input and 
look forward to continuing to work with everyone to serve the best interests of our 
employees and the citizens we all serve. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration of this recommended budget.  I look forward 
to continuing to work with this Board and the staff through its deliberation and eventual 
adoption. 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

Mr. Potter stated that the School Supt. will be at the public hearing on May 20, 
 
Chair Keyes said on behalf of the Board they appreciate all the work staff has done in the 

last year. 
 
BOARDS & COMMITTEES:  Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board stated she was contacted 

by the Director of the TTA, Mr. Tom Harrison, asking the Board to approve the TTA’s 
recommendation to appoint Ms. Tasha Young, proprietor of the Holiday Inn Express to the TTA. 
 

Ms. Young has said she would serve if appointed. 
 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to appoint Ms. Tasha Young to the TTA. 

Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  Please see below. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the budget transfers/ amendments 

#99-128_as presented.  Commissioner Spruill seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 OTHER ITEMS BY COMMISSIONERS OR STAFF: 
 
 Commissioner Johnson mentioned NCACC County Advocacy Day (June 12) and congratulated 

Kelly Chesson on achieving his master’s degree! 



DRAFT 

 

 Commissioner Phelps mentioned a pancake breakfast sat 8-11 @ Ruritan Club. 
He also noted that May 14 is runoff election day.  He mentioned that the first weekend in June is the 
National Bear Festival---come and spend lots of money 
 
 Chair Keyes said she has been to a lot of meeting, but signed on for that when she became a 

Commissioner. 
 
 She also recognized Planning Board member Charles Weathersbee in attendance tonight. 
 
 Mr. Potter stated that the Marine Corp BBQ lunch is this Friday. 

He also noted that EMTOC is moving forward with due diligence with Terracon on sampling of sites. Mr. 
Squires is talking with the architect.   The Budget book is missing the Fee Schedule will be given to the 
Commissioners before the Public Hearing on May 20.   
 
 Mr. Potter asked Ms. O’Neal, EMS Director, to tell the Board about the package she received. She 

said they received the life support equipment that they had in this year’s budget.  
  
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to 
NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  (attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) 
(personnel).  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Back in Open Session, Chair Keyes read a message she received from Mr. Ron Ambrose, Chair 
of the Fire Commission regarding their budget needs this year: 
 
I trust this message finds you well. I am writing to share a proposal that I believe is of utmost 
importance for our community's safety and well-being. 

Following discussions with our five fire chiefs, it has become evident that our Fire departments 
require additional funding to effectively carry out their duties. Currently, our fire commission 
operates with a tax allocation of four cents from the ad valorem tax. However, it was originally 
requested to be five cents, and the need for that extra penny has only grown more critical over 
time. 

The escalating costs associated with firetrucks have made it increasingly challenging to maintain 
our apparatus within the NFPA standards. It's imperative that we address this issue promptly to 
ensure the safety of our firefighters and the efficiency of our emergency response services. 

Therefore, I propose the allocation of an additional penny to the ad valorem tax, bringing the 
total to five cents for the fire commission. This extra funding would come with specific 
stipulations regarding its usage. Primarily, it would be earmarked for the purchase of fire 
trucks, major repairs, or annual payments on fire apparatus. Furthermore, funds could only be 
retained for a maximum of five years without any activity, after which they would be held until 
necessary purchases or repairs are made. 

I believe this proposal is crucial in enabling our fire departments to adequately plan and 
maintain their equipment, ensuring that they remain fully equipped and prepared to serve our 
community. Without this additional support, we risk falling short of the standards required for 



DRAFT 

 

effective emergency response. We also will not be able to rotate the purchases of breathing 
apparatus, structural gear, and other high-dollar equipment needed to serve our community. 

I respectfully request your careful consideration of this matter, along with that of your fellow 
commissioners. Our dedicated fire personnel deserve every possible resource to carry out their 
duties safely and effectively. 

Thank you for your attention to this important issue. I look forward to your favorable response. 

Warm regards, 
  
Ron Ambrose 
Chief, Creswell Volunteer Fire Dept. Inc. 
252-505-1205 
chiefron400@yahoo.com 
 

Commissioner Spruill made a motion to recess the meeting to May 20, 2024 @ 6:00 
PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC to have the public 
hearing on the FY25 Budget Recommendation.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 

    Ann C. Keyes        Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
            Chair          Clerk to the Board 
 

mailto:chiefron400@yahoo.com


DRAFT  

 

                       
 

May 20, 2024 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a recessed meeting on Monday, 
May 20, 2024, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  
Commissioners Ann C. Keyes, Tracey A. Johnson, Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius 
Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, 
Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 

Chair Keyes called the meeting to order.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
a) NCVTS Pending Refund Report 
b) RESO 2024-018 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 134 Daisy Lane 
c) RESO 2024-019 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 90 Cumberland St. 
d) RESO 2024-020 Vulnerable Adult and Elder Abuse Awareness Month (Proclamation) 
e) RESO 2024-021 Authorizing Execution of A Utility Right of Way Agreement with 

Dominion Energy to Install and Connect Electrical Utilities at the Newly Constructed PK-12 
School 

 
 Commissioner Spruill said told the Board that Elder Abuse is a very real problem in most 
communities and most of our families.  He is glad that the Commissioners have drawn attention to it. 
 

Commissioner Johnson  made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW:  

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to re-convene as the Board of Equalization 

and Review.  Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
Ms. Bennett stated that Ms. Wilkins called before the start of tonight’s meeting and 

was under the weather and unable to attend. Ms. Wilkins asked Ms. Bennett to relay to the 
Board that there were no appeals as of today. 

 
Commissioner Phelps made a motion to recess the Board of Equalization & Review 

to June 3, 2024.  Commissioner Spruill seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ Agenda Package. 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 
as presented.  Commissioner Spruill seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
 



DRAFT  

 

 PUBLIC HEARING:  WASHINGTON COUNTY FY25 BUDGET 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 

 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to open the public hearing on the 
Washington County FY25 Budget Recommendation.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
Ms. Keyes called on Mr. Potter to speak.  He distributed a brief memo to the Board 

regarding the budget.  The fee schedule was included along with an email from the Fire 
Commission and from the school system.   
 



DRAFT  

 

 
 



DRAFT  

 

 
Mr. Ron Ambrose, Fire Commission Chair.  Mr. Ambrose Handed out a packet that was 

voted on by the Fire Commission and accepted to send to the Commissioner’s to add $.01 cent of 
the ad valorem tax to their budget.  Mr. Ambrose discussed items that they are required to have.  
Items that have to be rotated every 10 years. Talked about the last sheet…the bottom of it.  
Things they are required to have.  The cost of a fire truck has tripled since 2019.  Mr. Ambrose 



DRAFT  

 

said the hopes to have a favorable vote on this and the Fire Commission appreciates all that the 
Commissioners have done. 
 

Ms. Steffanie Barnes, Alliance for Greater Eastern NC (AGENC) read the following 
letter to the Commissioners. 

 
 

 
Chair Keyes thanked her for providing the information. 



DRAFT  

 

Ms. Sandy Rhodes, (CFFVC) spoke to the Board about needing funding for the Center 
for Violence Protection and talked about Ms. Doretha Garrett, the local advocate helping our 
residents.  Ms. Garrett also spoke and said they appreciate any help that the County can give 
them.  She did a presentation to the Board a few months ago but is here tonight asking for 
money. She would like to see families that they serve get a piece of pie.  She noted that they also 
have an attorney on board. 

 
Mr. Squires asked a question--how many calls are received from Washington County on 

average.  Ms. Rhodes said they provide about 85 services a month to our residents. 
 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to close the public hearing on the 

Washington County FY25 Budget Recommendation.  Commissioner Walker seconded; 
motion carried unanimously. 
  
 Ms. Potter took a moment to introduce our ECU summer intern who is here about 25 hours a 
week on a pre-law track.  Her name is Emma Corbett. 
 
 Commissioner Phelps reminded everyone of the Bear Festival next weekend (June 1). 
 
 Mr. Walker thanked the individuals that spoke tonight and gave him a different perspective on 
their issues. 
 
 Chair Keyes thanked folks for being here to speak and she wanted everyone to know that the Fire 
Fighters that were here tonight DO NOT GET PAID. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill asked Dr. White, School Supt. about the number of teachers getting 
supplements. Dr. White deferred to Ms. Jordan (WCS Finance Officer).  She gave the following 
numbers for the amount of money received from the County for teacher supplements:  2022 ~$66,609, 
2023 ~$104,751 and 2024 ~$71,826. Commissioner Spruill said he wants the actual numbers including 
how many teachers this covers. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill said he has a concern regarding the funding agreement for the PK-12 
school.  He was under the impression that it would be reviewed each year and the Early College would 
be moved to Roper and he has also heard that the school has received some additional grant funding.  
Dr. White deferred to Ms. Simpson and she said they are looking for a 3-county system to offer 
programs that none of us can provide as a standalone county -- Hyde, Tyrrell, & Washington.  Programs 
might be nursing, HVAC, welding, and electrical and there is not enough room for these classes in the 
new school.  Commissioner Spruill said that this new school is putting the citizens in debt and every 
penny counts. 
 
 Commissioner Phelps asked if they (WCS staff) have given any consideration to moving all of 
these programs to the Roper Union School. Dr. White said renovation of the site would not be cost 
advantageous.  The BoE rejected the Creswell School to be repaired. Phase II said to tear it down.  
Commissioners took that out—for it not to be torn down. Commissioner Phelps is not in favor of what 
the BoE is talking about.  Commissioner Spruill said to keep two welding schools open may be a little 
much. 
 



DRAFT  

 

 VOTING DELEGATE FOR 2024 NACO ANNUAL CONFERENCE: Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the 
Board told the Commissioner that Commissioner Johnson is the only Washington County Commissioner 
attending the 2024 NACO Annual Conference in Florida in July. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to appoint Commissioner Johnson as the Washington 
County Voting Delegate for the 2024 NACO Annual Conference.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  
Motion carried unanimously.  Commissioner Johnson wanted it to be noted that no County money is 
being used for this trip.  
 

Commissioner Phelps made a motion to adjourn.  Commissioner Spruill seconded.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
   Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC                          Ann C. Keyes       
           Clerk to the Board      Chair  

 
 
 
 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda June 3, 2024
	6-3-2024  Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds & Insolvents for June 3, 2024 BoCC
	NCVTS Pending Refund Report 052924
	RESO 2024-021 approve sale of Monroe St.
	Wash Co certificationStandards 24-25
	Facility Use Policy 2024.1 for 20240603 BOCC mtg
	6-3-2024  Item 2 (public forum)
	6-3-2024 Item 3 Employee of the Quarter
	6-3-2024 Item 4 Depatmental Update--Sr Ctr
	Sr. Center BOC Presentation June 2024
	Special Use Permit Quasi Judicial Hearing Procedure & Materials Nixon Cemetery for 20240603
	6-3-2024 Item 5 Board of E&R
	6-3-2024 Item 6 Quasi-Judicial Hearing Nixon Cemetary
	6-3-2024 Item 7 FY25 Budget Ordinance
	BOCC Memo re FY25 Budget Ordinance for 20240603 mtg
	FY25 BUDGET DRAFT 20240430v12 Ordinance Draft for 20240603 BOCC mtg
	6-3-2024 Item 8 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Transfers-Amendments 133 thru 138
	Finance Report thru 5-29-24
	Expenditure Transaction Report-Budget Amendments & Transfers thru 5-29-24
	Revenue Transaction Report-Budget Amendment & Transfers thru 5-29-24
	6-3-2024 Item 9 Other Items
	Reports for 6-3-2024 BoCC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	FY23-24 Statisitc Report (2).5 29 24pdf
	EMS
	Landfill
	Planning & Zoning
	 Tax
	Senior Center
	Detention
	Sheriff's Office
	Utilities
	Town of Plymouth

	ABC Items
	6-3-2024 Item 10 Closed Session
	5-6-2024 Minutes
	5-20-2024 Recessed Mtg Budget Public Hearing



